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UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-K

X ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the calendar year endBécember 31, 2014

OR
O TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the transition period from to

Commission file number: 0-20008

ASURE SOFTWARE, INC.

(Exact Name of Registrant as Specified in its Glrart

Delaware 742415696
(State or other jurisdiction « (I.LR.S. Employe
incorporation or organizatioi Identification No.)

110 Wild Basin Road, Suite 100
Austin, Texas 78746
(Address of Principal Executive Office (Zip Code)

(512) 4372700

(Registrar’s Telephone Number, including Area Co

SECURITIES REGISTERED PURSUANT TO SECTION 12(b) OF THE ACT:
None

SECURITIES REGISTERED PURSUANT TO SECTION 12(g) OF THE ACT:
Common Stock, $0.01 par value

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a welbwn seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405e0béturities Act. YeEl No X
Indicate by check mark if the registrant is notuieed to file reports pursuant to Section 13 o) %f the Act. Yedd No[X]

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant @9 filed all reports required to be filed by Sewti8 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange
of 1934 (“Exchange Act"fluring the preceding 12 months (or for such shgrégiod that the registrant was required to filehsteports), ar
(2) has been subject to such filing requirementsife past 90 days. YexI NoO

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant hdwnitted electronically and posted on its corpoléieb site, if any, every Interactive D
File required to be submitted and posted pursuaiule 405 of Regulation $8232.405 of this chapter) during the precedi@grionths (c
for such shorter period that the registrant wasired to submit and post such files). Yes NoO

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquélimgs pursuant to Item 405 of RegulationKS(§ 229.405 of this chapter) is not contai
herein, and will not be contained, to the besthaf tegistrans knowledge, in definitive proxy or information &ents incorporated
reference in Part Il of this Form 10-K or any amerent to this Form 10-KXI

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a-axcelerated filer, or a smaller repor!
company, as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange A

Large accelerated fileEl Accelerated filed Non-accelerated filéd Smaller reporting compaxy

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantsell company (as defined in Rule -2 of the Exchange Act). Yel No[X]



The aggregate market value of the 5,979,426 shafethe registrant's Common Stock held by raffikates on June 30, 2014 v
approximately $28,787,153. For purposes of thismaation all officers, directors and 5% benefi@alners of the registrant are deemed t

affiliates. Such determination should not be deem@ddmission that such officers, directors andefieial owners are, in fact, affiliates of -
registrant.

At March 26, 2015, there were 6,059,296 sharebefégistrant's Common Stock, $.01 par value, dsuml outstanding.

DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE
Portions of the registrant’s definitive Proxy Sta@t relating to its 2015 Annudleeting of Shareholders are incorporated by refarantc
Part 1l of this Annual Report on Form X0-where indicated. Such Proxy Statement, or an a@memnt to this report containing the Ite

comprising Part 1ll, will be filed with the U.S. 8arities and Exchange Commission within 120 dayerdhe end of the fiscal year to which
report relates.
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PART |
IT EM 1. BUSINESS
GENERAL

Asure Software, Inc., a Delaware corporation, glabal provider of cloud-based software-as-a-ser{fSaaS”")solutions that he
companies bring people, time, space and assetth&yge

Asure serves approximately 6,000 clients in 80 tiesy ranging from global Fortune 500 clients toafl and midsized businesse
Some of our clients include Aetna, Baker & McKenfeutsche Bank, KPMG UK, Merck and Co., Inc., Meled, Pfizer, Inc., Pearson, P¢
Salesforce.com, Inc., State Street and ThomsoneReuDur mission guides the work we do each dag; ‘iTo deliver innovative technolo
with the passion to empower every client’'s workplaad the commitment to make their workdays edsier.

We currently offer a full suite of solutions to petlients optimize and manage their mobile workésrand their global workspac
SaaSkased offerings include: asset management, mobibenrscheduling, mobile time tracking, schedulindtveare, space utilizatic
solutions, tablebased time clocks, time and labor management scdtwaeaditional time clocks, touch panels for roaeheduling, ar
workplace business intelligence (“Blgnalytics. All products are implemented using otavpn client deployment model and supported
professional services and client support teamsadead.

More than ever, companies are trying to get a lmadlhow to track, understand and optimize their estate and time and labor ci
in a world that is becoming increasingly mobile agidbal. With teleecommuting, hoteling (i.e., sharing of cubical spa@nd alternativ
working on the rise, executives have an opportutaitieinvent their workspaces to better meet tredaef their workforces and save milli
in real estate costs. Similarly, mobile time tragkiwith geospacial and facial recognition techn@egllows executives to better unders
where and when their employees are working, andiges great insights into optimizing labor schedudad labor costs. Mobile time ¢
tablet-based time tracking solutions also help caibuddy punching’- when a dishonest worker coersan absent carorker by punchin
the company time clock for the absent worker- whaah cost companies millions of dollars per year.

We were incorporated in 1985 and our principal ekge offices are located at 110 Wild Basin Roadites 100, Austin, Tex:
78746. Our telephone number is (512) 2300 and our website is www.asuresoftware.comorinétion on our website is not part of -
Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Asure makes available free of charge, on or thrdtgytvebsite, our annual report on Form 10-K, ouarterly reports on Form 1Q-
and our current reports on FornK8and amendments to those reports filed or fuedsbursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Exghakct
as soon as reasonably practicable after we electdynfile these materials or furnish them to tecurities and Exchange Commission.

RECENT DEVELOPMENTS

Term Loan - Wells Fargo

In March 2014, we entered into a credit agreemeiit Wells Fargo Bank, National Association (“N.A.§s administrative agent, &
the lenders that are party thereto (“Credit Agreetf)eThe Credit Agreement provides for a term loan mdmount of $15.0 million. The te
loan will mature in March 2019. The Credit Agreemermms amended in August 2014 to revise the leveratie beginning with the quar
ending September 30, 2014 to a leverage ratio bfjreater than 3.6 to 1.0 with the levels steppiagn thereafter. The Credit Agreement
amended in March 2015 to authorize us to optionaigpay, subject to specified conditions, the Sdinated Note Payable to Roomtag an
revise the leverage ratio beginning with the quagteded March 31, 2015 to a leverage ratio of metigr than 3.5 to 1.0 with the le\
stepping down thereafter.

We were in compliance with the covenant requiresast of December 31, 2014 and expect to be in ¢anga or be able to obt:
compliance through debt repayments with the avigilahsh on hand or as expected to be generatedojpenations over the subsequent tw
month period.

See Note 6 Note Payable in the accompanying financial statésnfor more information about the Credit Agreemand Guarant
and Security Agreement.
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2014 Acquisitions

In July 2014, we acquired all of the issued andstamding shares of common stock (the “Share§frotoPunch, Inc., a Delaw:
corporation (“FotoPunch”), a cloud-based time aaidol solution provider whose phdiased time clock technology transforms any mu
device into a biometric, gelocated time clock. We have been working with Fete¢h since 2012 as a technology partner for ouP@ach™
solution, which was launched to help customers sagpworkforce that is increasingly mobile, globad dispersed.

The aggregate consideration for the &haonsisted of (i) $1.5 million in cash, a portainvhich was used to pay certain obligati
of FotoPunch and (ii) up to an additional $3.0 imillin postelosing earnout payments. We funded the $1.5 miltiash payment with procet
from our Credit Agreement with Wells Fargo.

The $3.0 million earnout is payable over three earperiods (with the first, second and third pesi@nding June 30, 2015, June
2016 and June 30, 2018, respectively) based ofdt@Punch operations achieving specified targetmaes in each earnout period. At |
75% of the target revenues must be achieved ifirdteand second earnout periods and at least S0%tedarget revenues must be achieve
the third earnout period.

In August 2014, we acquired substantially all tlsseds of Roomtag, LLC (“RoomtagThe aggregate consideration for the a:
consisted of (i) $933,000 in cash and (ii) an unsed subordinated promissory note (“Notédfy $754,000. We funded the $933,000 ¢
payment with proceeds from our Credit Agreemenhwitells Fargo. The Note bears interest at an anratal of 0.36% ands payable o
October 31, 2016. See Note 6 - Note Payable imthempanying financial statements for more inforomaabout the Note.

PRODUCTS AND SERVICES

Asure’s Saa®ased solutions are uniquely designed to help corepdring people, time, space and assets togetimeore effectivel
manage their global, mobile workforces. As compamegruit, hire and work to retain mobile employe®scutives use Asuresolutions t
understand how their workspaces are used, trackamalwhen people work, and foster productivity taking it easy for employees to find
workspace they need. We currently offer two maiodpct lines, AsureSpace™ and AsureForcé®ureSpace™ provides workpl:
management solutions that enable organizationsatwage their office environments and optimize retdte utilization, and AsureForceine
and labor management solutions help organizatiptim@e labor and labor administration costs anilaies.

With AsureSpace™ workspace management solutioiesitslrealize significant costs savings and Returinvestment (“ROI"gain:
by better using their real estate with a full politf of industry-leading, global, SaaS-based sohgi Our SmartView®r roduct offers uniqt
insights into how space is being used, which alloasipanies to make proactive, strategic decisibositareal estate investments. Smart9ag
asset management helps companies assign physied$ 4s people and spaces so they can track aodereall assets, including cell phor
laptops, desks, chairs, and virtually any item gresil to an employee. AsureSpace™ resource schgdaid meeting room managen
solutions help employees easily find and reseraeeor their specific needs. Our new product, Npac®®,allows users to find and rese
desk spaces, conference rooms, catering, audidvmsnd more directly from their smart phones. ASpace™ touch panels and kiosks
placed outside busy areas for on-flyedesk and space reservation needs; viewers iogah feserve and use available space as needel
lastly, Workplace Bl tools offer invaluable repadifor executives to understand space utilizatiosh @ontinue to make improvements in t
real estate investments.

Cost savings and additional ROI gains come in tienfof a more strategic use of labor dollars arddlimination of time theft wit
AsureForce® workforce management solutions. GeoR®&nmobile time tracking, the AirClock™ tablet-bdséme tracking, and Asure’
workforce management platform offer clients sevathlantages. First, mobile time tracking with gemsal and facial recognition technolog
help executives better understand where and whendamployees are working and provide great insighito optimizing labor schedules
labor costs. Mobile time and table#sed time tracking solutions make it much moriiefit for employees to punch in and out from wker
they are working, whether it is a client site, arkvsite, or a home-based work arrangement. GeoRuetd AirClock™ also help comt
buddy punching, which can cost companies milliohdadlars per year. Finally, employees, supervisord executives have reiiilie access
data and business intelligence to eliminate buddcping, optimize job costing and labor schedulanrg] ultimately control and optimize lal
costs.

For both product lines, support and professionalises are other key elements of our software andices business. As an exten:
of our perpetual software product offerings, Asoffers our customers maintenance and support adsttiaat provide ready access to qual
support staff, software patches and upgrades teofiware products. We also provide installatidrand training on our products, add-
software customization and other professional ses/bn a global scale.
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PRODUCT DEVELOPMENT

We strive to quickly bring to market innovativepgti-based solutions that work when, where and how weocks are operating tod
Asure’s strategy is to deliver the right technoldgyits customer base in order to realize efficiesién the workplace. First-tararket mobil
applications are a testament to our success invatimm. Additionally, Asure is committed to @Rovation, working in partnership w
industry leaders, partners and clients around libteeggto develop technology solutions that meetideds of a rapidly shifting workplace.

Our industry is characterized by continuing improesits in technology, resulting in the frequentddtrction of new products, sh
product life cycles, changes in customer needscamiinual improvement in product performance charégtics. Asure strives to be cost
effective and timely in enhancing our software agtions, developing new innovative software solu$i that address the increasit
sophisticated and varied needs of an evolving rarigeistomers, and anticipating technological adearand evolving industry standards
practices.

Asure development teams — located in Traverse @itghigan; Dedham, Massachusetts; Salt Lake Citghland Austin, Texas ate
staffed with software developers, quality assuraeegineers and support specialists who work clogéti our customers and sales
marketing teams to build products and serviceschasamarket requirements and customer feedbackd&Velop our new product and sen
roadmaps based on inputs from customers, competitmparisons and relevant technology innovations.

Our research and development strategy is root@thimvation and flexibility. The development teanhances the functionality of ¢
software and hardware products through new relemsgsew feature developments, with a particulaugoon cloudased SaaS solutions
products for the mobile workforce. Asure will alsontinue to evaluate opportunities for developiegv software so that organizations 1
further streamline and automate the tasks assdciaitth administering their businesses. We seekinwltaneously allow organizations
improve their productivity while reducing the coatssociated with those business tasks.

We also actively search for potential product, meror business acquisitions that we believe vathplement our existing and plani
product and service offerings. We cannot assuaewte will make future acquisitions or that we carccessfully integrate acquired asse
businesses profitably into Asure.

Despite our efforts, we also cannot assure thatmllecomplete our existing and future developmeffors or that our new ai
enhanced software products will adequately meetdfjgirements of the marketplace and achieve madaesgptance. Additionally, Asure n
experience difficulties that could delay or prevéérd successful development or introduction of wewnhanced software products. In the
of acquiring new or complementary software prodactgechnologies, we may not be able to integitageaicquisitions into our current proc
lines. Furthermore, despite extensive testingyrenmay be found in new software products or releadter shipment, resulting in a diversio
development resources, increased service cossspfasvenue and/or delay in market acceptance.

SALES AND DISTRIBUTION

Asure sells its software products and servicesutjindoth a direct and channel (partner) model, vkitables us to sell our softw
solutions in an efficient, cogtffective manner. Prospective customers learn aBsute through a variety of ways, including adwentj, wel
site searches, sales calls, public relations, timecketing and social media. When prospectivéornsrs show an interest in Asure, we con
them with a sales representative via our web phiene or a face-ttace meeting to discuss their needs and the sohkitloey are interested
and make the sale. We track our marketing and sadBvities to provide immediate preview into aitks, leads and pipeline opportunit
Asure account management teams also work withiegististomers to promote and sell additional sohgithat are relevant for each custo
In addition to this direct sales model, we supplentieese efforts with our partner programs desdritilow. By working with our partners,
expand the reach of our direct sales force and gedess to key opportunities in major market segsneorldwide. Asure has two distil
levels of partners in our Partner Program: Res@liatners and Referral Partners.

Reseller Partners. Reseller Partners are companies that represegiobally, as well as before the Federal governmantl ofte
offer complementary products to either the workspam@nagement product line or the workforce prodinet Reseller Partners commit t
minimum level of business per year with us andixeca channel discount for that commitment. Ousdler Partners outside the United St
include Novera in Australia which represents thekspace product line. We also have several Redetieners that represent our softwal
the Federal government space. Resellers of oukfarge product line in the United States includesi®aDutsourcing, a large provider
human resource outsourcing solutions.
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Referral Partners . Referral Partners provide us with the name artiqular information about a prospective customnad its neec
as a sales lead. If we accept the sales leadegister it for the Referral Partner. If we maksate as a direct result of such a lead, we wil
the Referral Partner a sales lead referral feare@tly, we have a number of Referral Partnerduiting PolyVision Corp., Steelcase and €
Innovative Solutions for the workspace managemssdyect line and several smaller firms for our workie product line.

COMPETITION

We believe we have a unique position in the maplkete, in that Asure is the only technology companthe world that offers SaaS-
based workspace and workforce management solufions a single partner. Additionally, we believe Asinas been first-torarket witt
mobile apps in the workspace management industdy ve are the only known company to have both ged@dpand facial recognitic
technology working together for mobile time traakin

Specific to the AsureSpace™ line of workspace rgament software solutions, we have a competitivaaihge in the breadth of «
comprehensive platform of workspace scheduling atilzation analytics as well as our resources labée for product development, cli
services, and customer support. The primary catopgto AsureSpace™ include Dean Evans & Assogjdtec., Emergingsoft Corporatic
AgilQuest Corporation and Condeco Ltd. (UK). Indaidn to the features and available services, wkebe the principal advantages
AsureSpace™ with respect to its competitors inclitsleloudbased services model, extensive product integratmions and partner chanr
scalable deployments, configurable interfaces, fe@icess and price.

We believe that the AsureForcdi®e of workforce management software solutions dasmpetitive advantage in the marketpla
serving organizations seeking specific paotutions as well as organizations desiring amgirasteed suite of solutions, particularly in the aoé
mobile time collection. We believe GeoPunch® andChack™ products are first-tmarket technology solutions with significant ma
demand. By competing tactically with poistlutions and strategically with an integratedesoit solutions, Asure can serve the needs of ad
spectrum of companies. Primary competitors to ASaree® include Kronos, Replicon, and Time Simpjicit

While Asure has the advantage of a flexible, easysde, cloud-based, Sad8livered software model, affordability and pro
deployment methodology, we face several categofieesmpetitive challenges:

Vendors with face-to-face sales contact. In this highly relationship-based sales procesadues with large, dispersed field-
based sales team who meet and consult with praspage an advantage. Key U.S. vendors who apptbacimarket in this
manner include ADP, Kronos, PeopleSoft, CondecoStrdicase. Asure has recently launched a fieldebapproach to sales
and also focuses on high-touch marketing campadgdseveraging relationships with channel partnedsuild relationships
with prospects.

National payroll processors with loss-leader products. Large brand and market share payroll processinglomsn(such as
ADP, Inc.) offer equivalent point solutions atléttor no cost to prospects when in a competitivgagement because these
loss leader products become inconsequential néketocore business offerings.

Sngle application vendors. Vendors that offer similar point-solutions, suchrasm scheduling, office hoteling management,
time and attendance, employee/manager self-semafitk paystub management, can be perceived as Ie#ieting an
immediate and specific need.

Because the market for our products and serviceshect to rapid technological change and thezer@atively low barriers to ent
in the workplace management software market, wémely encounter new entrants or competition froemdors in some or all aspects of
two product lines. Competition from these potentigrket entrants may take many forms. Some of oorpetitors, both current and futt
may have greater financial, technical and market@spurces than us and therefore may be able pomdsmore quickly to new or emerg
technologies and changes in customer requiremeXdsa result, they may compete more effectivelypdoe and other terms. Additiona
those competitors may devote greater resourcegvelabing products or in promoting and selling th@ioducts to achieve greater ma
acceptance. Asure is actively taking measuregdedito address our competitive challenges. Horyewe cannot assure that we will be
to achieve or maintain a competitive advantage vagipect to any of the competitive factors.
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MARKETING

Asure’s marketing strategy has relied on the developnagelt implementation of a comprehensive integrated pboted in ot
business objectives. The marketing plan includes primary objectives: 1) build brand awarene3sjeédelop lead generation programs
drive revenue, 3) launch products in a meaningfay \&nd 4) develop an infrastructure that supparts rmaeasures marketing activities.
deploy multi-faceted, multseries direct marketing programs to drive awarerigtsrest and revenue. Marketing vehicles inclodeweb site
organic and paid search, advertising, public refetj direct marketing, events, social media, cammarketing and eMarketing. Our marke
plan addresses growth and retention goals foraalet audiences, from small and medisized businesses to Fortune 500 companie
divisions of enterprise organizations throughoetltmited States, Europe and Asia/Pacific.

TRADEMARKS

We have registered Asure Softwara® a federal trademark with the U.S. Patent andemmark Office. Our other federal tradem:
include AsureForce®, Face Time Clock®, Legiant Tearel® and ADI Time®and we have pending applications for federal regfisin of the
marks AsureSpace™, SmartView™ and GeoPunch™. Weuasls the common law trademarks iEmployee™, Net&tgp*, AsureSpace™
ADI™ and Legiant Express™.

EMPLOYEES

As of December 31, 2014, we had a total of 119 eggas in the following departments:

NUMBER OF
FUNCTION EMPLOYEES
Research and developmt 26
Sales and marketir 32
Customer service and technical supj 38
Finance, human resources and administration 23
Total 11¢

We continually evaluate and adjust the size andpasition of our workforce. We also periodicallyaigt contractors to support ¢
sales and marketing, information technology andiathtnative functions. None of our employees apresented by a collective bargair
agreement. Asure has not experienced any workpatms and we consider our relations with our engasyto be good. Additionally,
augment our workforce capacity in research and Idpugent and customer service and technical sugporontracting for services throt
third parties.

Our future performance depends largely on ourtghidi continually and effectively attract, trairetain, motivate and manage hig
qualified and experienced technical, sales, margedind managerial personnel. Asar&iture development and growth depend on thete
of key management personnel and technical employeese uses incentives, including competitive cengation and stock options, to att
and retain welgualified employees. However, we cannot assure weatwill continue to attract and retain personnéthwthe requisit
capabilities and experience. The loss of one orenabAsures key management or technical personnel could aawaterial and adverse eff
on our business and operating results.

EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

The information regarding directors and corporatgegnance matters is incorporated herein by referdrom the section entitl
“Election of Directors” of the Company’s definitiveroxy Statement (the “Proxy Statemeritf)be filed pursuant to Regulation 14A of
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, ferréigistrants’/Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be held on Jup20d5. The Pro»
Statement is anticipated to be filed within 120glafter the end of the registrant’s fiscal yeareshBecember 31, 2014.

The following table sets forth information regamglithe Company’s current executive officers as ofdfi&5, 2015:

Name Age Position

Patrick Goepe 53 Chief Executive Office
Steven Rodrigue 48 Chief Operating Office
Brad Wolfe 55 Chief Financial Office

Mike Kinney 46 Vice President of Sale
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Patrick Goepel was elected to the CompasyBoard of Directors at its August 28, 2009 AnnMegeting of Shareholders. He v
subsequently appointed as Interim Chief Executiffic€ on September 15, 2009 and became Chief BxecOfficer of the Company as
January 1, 2010. Prior to his appointment, heeskas Chief Operating Officer of Patersons Glolzairél. Previously, he was the Presic
and Chief Executive Officer of Fidelity InvestmentHuman Resource Services Division from 2006 to82@0esident and Chief Execut
Officer of Advantec from 2005 to 2006; and ExecetWice President of Business Development and US&dipaes at Ceridian from 1994
2005. A former board member of iIEmployee, Mr. Gdeperently serves on the board of directors ofOMér Media, APPD Investments, ¢
SafeGuard World International.

Steven Rodriguezjoined the Company as Chief Operating Officer imeJ2011. From February through May 2011, the Coly
retained him as a consultant to evaluate and med@wmendations related to the Company's sales arkkting strategies and processes.
to that, he served as the Principal for HCS, awlting company he founded. His past roles alstughe Executive Vice President and Offi
at Perquest, a national workforce management comgeom 2008 to 2009; Senior Vice President of SaleSales Operations at Cerid
Corporation, a human resource services company) 8001 to 2007; Regional Director for Epicor Softevdrom 2000 to 2001; and Vi
President of Sales at Automatic Data Processing?)ADnc., a provider of payroll and benefits admsiirdtion solutions, from 1990 to 2000.
Rodriguez holds a Bachelor of Business Adminigtratrom the University of Oklahoma.

Brad Wolfe joined the Company as Vice President and Chiefrigiah Officer in October 2014. Prior to joining ti@ompany, Mi
Wolfe spent most of the last 14 years with DCI Gramnd their related entities, a private equity envéstment organization, where he serve
consulting, office and executive finance and openat roles for the firns subsidiary and portfolio companies to promoter thgeowth ant
profitability. Before that, he was Chief Financiafficer and Executive Vice President at AON Corpiora a Fortune 200 company. |
background also includes mergers and acquisitionsoith public accounting and law firm settings, dnsl experience spans internatic
markets and a wide range of industries, includiechhology, software and real estate. Wolfe holdsvilBA degree from Northweste
University’s Kellogg School of Business, a J.D. degree froenkknt Law School executive program, and a B.B.égrde in accounting a
information systems from Southern Methodist Uniitgrs

Mike Kinney joined the Company in May 2011 as the Vice Pregidé®ales. Prior to joining the Company, he wdgegional Vici
President for the Human Resources Payroll DivisibCeridian Corporation from 2006 to 2010, wherelda: multiple regions, focusing
rebuilding market presence and driving toye revenue. From 2005 to 2006, he was Regioned VWresident at KFORCE, a recruiting pro
outsource company. He was also Regional Vice Reasit Creative Financial Staffing from 2001 to 200Ir. Kinney holds a Bachelor of A
in Political Science with a concentration in Ecorncsrfrom the University of Texas at Austin.

IT EM 1A. RISK FACTORS

We are a smaller reporting company as defined kg RRb2 of the Exchange Act and are not required to piethe informatio
required under this Item.

| TEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

None.
IT EM 2. PROPERTIES

Our principal offices are located in Austin, Texahere we occupy approximately 12,000 square featfiife space under o
operating lease that expires in June 2016. We leppeoximately 6,000 square feet in Dedham, Masssatts. We also lease office suite

Michigan, Utah and the United Kingdom.

Management believes that the leased propertiesidedabove are adequate to meet Asucerrent operational requirements and
accommodate further physical expansion of officacepas needed.
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IT EM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

In December 2012, we demanded a purchase pricetadjnt from PeopleCube Holding B.V. and Meeting btaolding B.V., th
sellers of the capital stock of Meeting MaketJnited States, Inc. (dba PeopleCube) that we psszhan July 2012, based on matters
discovered after closing. Both parties agreedttierpostelosing adjustment to be resolved by an independecwuntant consistent with
purchase agreement. In September 2013, we reachadreement (based upon the determination by tfepandent accountant) to settle
purchase price post-closing adjustment dispute thiérsellers. The parties agreed to a ptisting adjustment due to us with accrued intewé
$540,000. The parties agreed to reduce the origifd million deferred purchase payment by the -ptisting adjustment amount. This &
had the effect of reducing our lomgrm debt by a like amount. The remaining defepathase price balance was $2.5 million. The paeis
agreed to dismiss the litigation and claims in Bexafavor of consolidating all remaining disputeshe Massachusetts state court.

In February 2014, we reached an agreement to sditidaims and dismiss all pending litigation witie sellers. Under the settlerr
agreement, the parties agreed to dismiss thetlitigyand settle the remaining balance due of $alkomon the Subordinated Notes Paya
PeopleCube Acquisition Note for $1.7 million, whictve paid within five business days after the date the settlemel
agreement. Separately, our insurance carrier dgre@ay us $500,000 in conjunction with the setdat. With the insurance proceeds
after offsetting any related litigation costs in@at in 2014, we recorded a net gain of approxing#él0 million on the settlement in the f
quarter of 2014. We paid this note in full in tlhwstf quarter of 2014.

Finally, as part of the original purchase pricéhia PeopleCube acquisition, we issued 255,000 slvdir@ur common stock subject t
lockup of 125,000 shares expiring in June 2013%8@J000 shares expiring in June 2014. This settteremoved the lockup for the remair
130,000 shares.

Asure is periodically the defendant or plaintiffather actions arising in the normal course of less. No pending legal proceedi
to which we are a party are material to us.
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PART Il

IT EM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT' S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND IS SUER
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

MARKET INFORMATION

Our common stock trades on the NASDAQ Capital Mafigestem under the symbol “ASURThe following table shows the high ¢
low sale prices of our common stock for each futhider as reported by NASDAQ for the periods indida

2014 2013
HIGH LOW HIGH LOW
1st Quarte $ 6.88 $ 521 $ 720 $ 5.7¢
2nd Quarte $ 6.6¢ $ 57z $ 6.5: $ 4.81
3rd Quartel $ 6.2¢ $ 474 $ 6.0 $ 4.2~
4th Quartel $ 59 $ 45t % 592 $ 4.0z

DIVIDENDS

We have not paid cash dividends on our common slackg fiscal years 2014 and 2013. We presentignid to continue a policy
retaining earnings for reinvestment in our businesher than paying cash dividends.

HOLDERS
As of March 26, 2015, we had approximately 457 ldtotders of record of our common stock.

SECURITIES AUTHORIZED FOR ISSUANCE UNDER EQUITY COM PENSATION PLANS

The following table provides information as of Detger 31, 2014 with respect to shares of our comsbock that we may issue un
our existing equity compensation plans (share asaarthousands).

A B C
Number of Securities
Remaining
Available for Future
Issuance
Under Equity
Number of Securities Compensation
to be Issued Upon Weighted Average  Plans (Excluding
Exercise of Exercise Price of Securities
Outstanding Outstanding Reflected in Column
Plan Category Options Options A)
Equity Compensation Plans Approy
by Stockholders (1 73t $ 3.51 59¢
Equity Compensation Plans Not
Approved by Stockholders (2) -0- $ -0- -0-
Total 73t $ 3.51 59¢
1) Consists of the 1996 Stock Option Plan and the Zafigty Plan.
(2) Our stockholders have previously approved eachupggisting equity compensation pla
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ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

None.
IT EM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

We are a smaller reporting company as defined hg RR-b2 of the Exchange Act and are not required to gi®the informatio
required under this Item.

ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF F INANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT REGARDING FORWARD -LOOKING STATEMENTS

Certain statements in this Report represent ford@oking statements. These statements involve knawd unknown risk
uncertainties and other factors that may causeahcssults of operations, levels of activity, ecomo performance, financial condition
achievements to be materially different from futuesults of operations, levels of activity, econorperformance, financial condition
achievements as expressed or implied by such forleaking statements.

Asure has attempted to identify these forward-logkistatements with the words “believes,” “estimitéplans,” “expects,”
“anticipates,” “may,” “could” and other similar esgssions. Although these forward-looking statemesflect managemerst’current plans al
expectations, which we believe reasonable as of filieg date of this Report, they inherently arebmct to certain risks a
uncertainties. Additionally, Asure is under noightion to update any of the forward-looking sta¢ens after the date of this Form KOto
conform such statements to actual results.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following table sets forth, for the fiscal mets indicated, the percentage of total revenuaegsepted by certain items in Aswge’
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Loss:

2014 2013
Revenues 100.(% 100.(%
Gross margir 76.€ 74.¢
Selling, general and administrati 51.t 52.C
Research and developmt 12.2 11.1
Amortization of intangible asse 7.3 8.€
Total operating expens 71.C 71
Total other loss, ne¢ (6.4) (9.2
Net loss (2.0 (0.9

Overview

Asure is a leading global provider of clobdsed SaaS solutions that help companies brindedope, space and assets together.
software is delivered primarily as software-aseavice, or SaaS, and on premise. We currentlgr afffull suite of solutions to help clie
optimize and manage their mobile workforces andr thbal workspaces. Sadf&sed offerings include: asset management, mobde
scheduling, mobile time tracking, scheduling sofeyaspace utilization solutions, tablesed time clocks, time and labor manage
software, traditional time clocks, touch panelsrmom scheduling, and workplace Bl analytics. Althgucts are implemented using our prc
client deployment model and supported with profasai services and client support teams as needed.

Our product offerings consist of AsureSpace™ wakpl management solutions that enable organizatmmsanage their offic
environments and optimize real estate utilizatamg AsureForce@&me and labor management solutions which help rorgéions optimiz
labor and labor administration costs and activitl® target our sales and marketing efforts to dewange of audiences, from small
mediumsized businesses to Fortune 500 companies andiotigiof enterprise organizations throughout theté¢hiStates, Europe &
Asia/Pacific. We generate sales of our solutiomeubh our direct sales teams and indirectly throoghchannel partners. We are expan
our investment in our direct sales teams to coetiouaddress our market opportunity.
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Asure plans to continue to target small and medized businesses and divisions of enterprisesddiition to continuing to devel
our workforce management solutions and release safiware updates and enhancements, we are corgirtairactively explore oth
opportunities to acquire additional products orhtedlogies to complement our current software amvices. As the overall workfor
management solutions market continues to experigigogicant growth related to SaaS products, Asatends to continue to focus on sale
our Meeting Room Manager, PeopleCube, and ADI Saes®d products.

In March 2014, we entered into a new Credit Agresimand Guaranty and Security Agreement with Welsgb Bank, Nation
Association. See “Recent Developments” above anig §-Note Payable in the accompanying financial statesnfm more information. W
used the proceeds of the $15.0 million term loageuthe Credit Agreement to finance the repayméatl @amounts outstanding under our |
agreement with Deerpath Funding, LP (“Deerpathd) #re payment of certain fees, cost and expentasdedo the Credit Agreement.

In July 2014, we acquired all of the issued andstamding shares of common stock (the “Share§frotoPunch, Inc., a Delaw:
corporation (“FotoPunch”), a cloud-based time aaidol solution provider whose phdiased time clock technology transforms any mu
device into a biometric, gdlocated time clock. We have been working with Foto¢h since 2012 as a technology partner for ourP@ach™
solution, which was launched to help customers sagpworkforce that is increasingly mobile, globad dispersed.

The aggregate consideration for the Shares codsigté) $1,500 in cash, a portion of which wasdise pay certain obligations
FotoPunch and (ii) up to an additional $3,000 istmosing earnout payments. We funded the $1,500 pagment with proceeds from «
credit agreement with Wells Fargo.

The $3,000 earnout is payable over three earnaidgdse(with the first, second and third periodsiegdlune 30, 2015, June 30, 2
and June 30, 2018, respectively) based on the BothPoperations achieving specified target revenuesch earnout period. At least 759
the target revenues must be achieved in the fidtsacond earnout periods and at least 50% oftlyettrevenues must be achieved in the
earnout period.

In August 2014, we acquired substantially all tisseds of Roomtag, LLC (“Roomtag”he aggregate consideration for the a
consisted of (i) $933 in cash and (ii) an unsecuédbrdinated promissory note (“Notdr $754. We funded the $933 cash payment
proceeds from our credit agreement with Wells Fafigee Note bears interest at an annual rate of9.88d is payable on October 31, 2(
See Note 6 — Note Payable in the accompanying dinbstatements for more information about the Note

Under the continued guidance and direction of owectbrs and Chief Executive Officer, Asure willntmue to implement i
corporate strategy for growing its software andises business. However, uncertainties and clgdigmemain and there can be no assur.
that Asure can successfully grow its revenues bieae profitability and positive cash flows durioglendar year 2015.

Revenue

Our revenue was derived from the following sour@eshousands):

Increase

Revenue 2014 2013 (Decrease) %

Cloud revenut $ 13,71¢  $ 12,878 $ 841 7
Hardware revenu 2,62: 2,13t 48¢ 23
Maintenance and support rever 6,48¢ 6,67¢ (290) (©)]
On premise software license revel 99¢ 1,09z (93 (9
Professional services revenue 3,37¢ 2,69: 68€ 26
Total revenue $ 27,20t $ 2547: $ 1,73: 7

Our product offerings are categorized into Asure®pd and AsureForce@sureSpace™ offers workplace management soluthan
enable organizations to manage their office enwiremts and optimize real estate utilization, and réBarce® offers time and lab:
management solutions which help organizations dpéinebor and labor administration costs and a@tii Both product groupings inclt
cloud revenue, hardware revenue, maintenance gugbgurevenue, on premise software license revemaeprofessional services rever
AsureSpace™ revenues include PeopleCube, MeetimgnRdanager and Roomtag revenues. AsureFone@nues include ADI, Legia
iEmployee and FotoPunch revenues.
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Our total revenue in 2014 was $27.2 million, as pared to $25.5 million in 2013. Total revenue repres our consolidated rever
including sales of our scheduling software, timd attendance and human resource software, complarydrardware devices to enhance
software products, software maintenance and sugporices, installation and training services atteioprofessional services.

Total revenue increased by $1.7 million, or 6.8%2014 as compared to 2013. This increase wasaply due to an increase
cloud revenue, hardware revenue and professiomgices revenue, offset by smaller decreases in ter@@mce and support revenue ani
premise software license revenue. AsureSpace™ weven2014 increased $2.1 million, or 15.0%, offisgta decrease in AsureForce®
$362,000, or 3.2%, as compared to 2013. The inereaf\sureSpace™ revenue consists of a $919,0084dse in cloud revenue, a $685,
increase in hardware revenue, a $527,000 increge®fessional services revenue and an $111,000&se in on premise software, offset
decrease of $148,000 in maintenance and suppoenuev This increase in AsureSpace™ revenue wasaplyndue to an increase
PeopleCube and Meeting Room Manager cloud reveagesgll as the addition of Roomtag cloud revemu20i14. There was also an incre
in PeopleCube hardware and professional servicesmoe. The decrease in AsureForae@enue was primarily due to decreases in all g
revenues, ADI hardware revenue and on premise agdthicense revenue and iEmployee cloud revenuewiaae revenue and professic
services revenue, offset by increases in ADI clewtnue and professional services revenue.

Total cloud revenue increased $841,000, or 6.5%r; 8013. In AsureSpace™, PeopleCsbabud revenue accounted for $501,0C
this increase and Meeting Room Manager cloud revdnareased $264,000, or 12.3%, over 2013 clouéme®. Roomtag contribul
$155,000 to cloud revenue in 2014. In AsureForo&B), cloud revenue increased $480,000, or 20.3%yr 8043. Legiant and iEmployee clc
revenue decreased by $197,000, or 27.1%, and ¥B&B30 9.7%, over 2013, respectively. The lattas dueo turning focus away from t
iEmployee software product and focusing resourcethe newer technology in the ADI software subgmipsolutions. Overall, we attribt
our cloud revenue increases to a combination of sedes offset by the accretive nature of recurciogd revenue.

During 2014, hardware revenues increased $488,0022.8%, over 2013. For AsureSpace™, PeopleGubhardware reven
increased $641,000, or 122.7%, from 2013 to $1.Homiand Meeting Room Manager hardware revenueessed $44,000, or 26.8%,
$210,000. AsureForce®ardware revenue decreased $198,000, or 13.7%, 20E8. ADI and Legiant had $1.2 million and $30|
respectively, of hardware revenue in 2014. ADI'sdwaare revenue decreased $14,000, or 1.2%, fron3.20dgiants hardware reven
decreased $156,000, or 80.9%, from 2013.

During 2014, maintenance and support revenue 8ligleicreased to $6.5 million in 2014 from $6.7 raill in 2013, a $190,000,
2.8%, decrease from 2013. PeopleCube, Meeting Rdanmager, ADI and Legiant had $2.3 million, $2.1lioil, $1.1 million and $913,00
respectively, of maintenance and support reven®9it. The majority of the decrease is in Asure8phenaintenance and support reve
which decreased $148,000, or 3.3%, from 2013 td #4llion. Meeting Room Manger maintenance and suppevenues decreased $107.
or 4.8%, from 2013 and PeopleCube’s maintenancesapgort revenue decreased $41,000, or 1.8%, fAi. AsureForce@naintenance at
support revenue decreased $42,000, or 1.9%, fralB8 &9 $2.1 million. Legiang maintenance and support revenues decreased 8238
20.3%, from 2013, offset by an increase in ADI'simbenance and support revenue, which increased Bg,800, or 17.6%, from 2013.

During 2014, on premise software license revenwmsedsed $93,000, or 8.5%, as compared to 2013e8gace™ on premi
software license revenues increased $111,000, .822@om 2013. While PeopleCube on premise softiaense revenues remained fa
consistent with 2013, Meeting Room Manger on prenssftware license revenues increased $99,0000204, as compared to 2013.
AsureForce®the overall decrease was $204,000, or 37.5%, dgvenarily from a decrease in ADI on premise sofvicense revenue
$122,000, or 28.9%, and a decrease in Legiant @mige software license revenue of $82,000, or 67f6%» 2013. We continue to focus
efforts on recurring cloud revenue from our direestomers, as opposed to onetime on premise sefticanse revenue.

Professional services revenue increased $686,00@25%%, over 2013. AsureSpace™ professional sesvievenue increas
$527,000, or 23.8%, and AsureForcg®dfessional services revenue increased $159,00830%, over 2013. PeopleCube profess
services revenue increased $479,000 or 28.1%, 203, while Meeting Room Manager professional sewirevenue increased slightly
$41,000 or 8.1%, in 2014 as compared to 2013. &Ppibfessional services revenue increased $19000@%.3%, as compared to 2013, of
by smaller decreases in Legiant and iEmployee psideal service revenue.

Although our total customer base is widely spreass industries, our sales are concentrated tainendustry sectors, includi
corporate, education, healthcare, government, legalnonprofit. We continue to target small and mediunedibusinesses and division:
larger enterprises in these same industries ap@ctge customers. Geographically, we sell ourdpots worldwide, but sales are larg
concentrated in the United States, Canada and EurAdditionally, we have a distribution partnerAwstralia. As the overall workfor
management solutions market continues to experigigegicant growth related to SaaS products, wikaeintinue to focus on sales of Meet
Room Manager On Demand, PeopleCube and ADI Saafbigio
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In addition to continuing to develop our workfore@d workspace management solutions and releasesa#tware updates a
enhancements, we continue to actively explore otipgortunities to acquire additional products athteologies to complement our curt
software and services. Through acquisitions in 26fLADI and Legiant, we expanded our cloud commutime and attendance software
management services business. The 2012 acquisitiBropleCube gave us a product line that inclsdéisvare to assist customers in dri
integrated facility management of offices, confeenooms, video conferencing, events and trairaltgrnative workspaces and lobby use.
2014 acquisitions of FotoPunch and Roomtag supporvision to deliver innovative cloud-based wodq# technologies.

Gross Margin

Consolidated gross margin was $21.0 million in 28hd $19.0 million in 2013, an increase of $1.8ioml or 9.7%. Gross margin
a percentage of revenues was 76.8% for 2014 a®dertar 2013. We attribute the increase in grossgimao a continued shift in revenue t
toward higher margin items, such as cloud revemadepgofessional services revenue.

Consolidated cost of sales decreased $111,000,786,1from 2013. Our cost of sales relates primatdydirect product cos
compensation and related consulting expenses, baedexpenses and the amortization of our purchssidare development costs. Th
expenses represented approximately 82% of the dostlof sales for both 2014 and 2013. These exgesigihtly decreased by approxima
$83,000, or 1.6%, over 2013. This decrease is cgegprof a decrease in direct product costs of apmately $111,000, or 5.3%, ant
decrease in salary expense of $43,000, or 1.7%. Whs offset by an increase in equipment experfss69000, or 53.2%, and an increas
depreciation and amortization of $16,000, or 2.8%er 2013. We include intangible amortization reteto developed and acquired techno
within cost of sales.

During 2015, we expect to continue proactively ngamg our cost of sales by maximizing efficienciesoughout our company.
Selling, General and Administrative Expenses

Selling, general and administrative (“SG&A8xpenses were $14.0 million in 2014 and $13.3 anilin 2013, an increase of $747,(
or 5.6%. SG&A expenses as a percentage of revemeies51.5% and 52.0% for 2014 and 2013, respégtive

Sales and marketing expenses increased $869,000. ¥, and general and administrative expensesased $122,000, or 1.7
over 2013. The increase in sales and marketingnsgseis due to increased sales and marketing €fiadiuding lead generation and o
marketing expenses, as well as higher sales corapenss a result of higher revenues. General dndrastrative expenses included $137,
in severance expense related to PeopleCube intB@i8ere not present in 2014.

We will incur significant additional legal expensasd/or professional servicestated expenses in the future if we pursue fu
acquisitions of products or businesses, even ifitmmately do not consummate any acquisition.

Research and Development Expenses

Research and development (“R&D&xpenses were $3.3 million in 2014 and $2.8 millinn2013, an increase of $475,00(
16.8%. R&D expenses as a percentage of revenuesi®e?% and 11.1% for 2014 and 2013, respectively.

The $475,000 increase is due to an increase incheatiand the related placement fees, as wel\asa®gce expense for an emplc
recorded in the second quarter of 2014. These asere reflect our commitment to expand and enhanceindustry leading tools a
technology.

We continue to improve our products and technokdleough organic improvements as well as throughuised intellectus
property. We believe that our expanded investmei®aaS hosting, mobile and hardware technologyjestie ground work for broader mat
opportunities, and represents a key aspect of omnpetitive differentiation. Native mobile applimats, QR Code integration, expanded
service integration and other technologies arpat of our initiatives.

Additionally, we continue to develop AsureForce €imind released a new version in December 2014.rélease is the culminati
of more than 500 development hours and provideeri@mn 100 fixes and solutions. The new versiafu@tes Single Sigen functionality
allowing users to sign into multiple applicatiorisoace by using our integration with OnelLogin; dmaw advanced scheduling module ca
Visual Scheduling, which allows authorized usergdsily schedule large groups of employees witltéekke” copy/paste functionality; ai
extensive API and configuration updates.
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We also focused development resources on two mendupt lines, Resource Scheduler (“RSHd Meeting Room Manag
(“MRM”). RS version 10 was released in September of 2014naheded over 700 development and Quality Assugamaurs. This relea
featured support for double-byte characters sels;directional integration with Cisco TMS video cordace systems, and a new conne
supporting integrations with Microsoft Lync.

MRM had several maintenance releases in 2014. Dprednt for MRM v11 commenced in the fourth quagef014 and will b
available in 2015.

Asure also put resources towards the developmeMosfSpace, an industigading mobile application for iOS devices, andl
release Android compatibility in 2015. NowSpacews users to create reservations and send irvitdlirectly from their mobile devic
NowSpace also gives visibility to attendee freeytashedules which is a first in mobile calendampglications. NowSpace is compatible \
both Resource Scheduler and Meeting Room Manager.

Our development efforts for future releases andaroéments are driven by feedback received fromexisting and potenti
customers and by gauging market trends. We believdave the appropriate development team to designfurther improve our workfor
management solutions.

Amortization of Intangible Assets

Amortization expenses in 2014 were $2.0 millionlearease of $181,000, or 8.3%, as compared torlli@n in 2013. Amortizatio
expenses as a percentage of revenues were 7.3%620dor 2014 and 2013, respectively. This de@éashe result of some of PeopleCushe’
intangible assets being sold in the third quartéx0d 3 and others becoming fully amortized.

Other Loss

Other Loss was $1.7 million for the year ended 284 4ompared to $2.3 million in the year ended 2@8&her Loss in 2014 and 2(
is primarily comprised of interest expense and aixation of original issue discount from acquisitielated debt. Other loss in 2014
contains a loss on debt refinancing of $1,402 ebffy a gain on the settlement of the PeopleCuigation of $1,034. Interest expense on n
payable was $1,274 and amortization of originaliésdiscount (“OID")on notes payable was $72 as compared to intergsineg on not
payable of $1,943 and amortization of OID of $482013.

Income Taxes

At December 31, 2014, we had federal net operaliisg carryforwards of approximately $116.6 millioRederal R&D cred
carryforwards of approximately $5.0 million andeaftative minimum tax credit carryforwards of appnoately $161,000. The net operal
loss and Federal R&D credit carryforwards will expin varying amounts from 2018 through 2034, it ntilized. Minimum tax cred
carryforwards carry forward indefinitely.

Income tax expense remained flat at $117,000 it 201d 2013. These figures represent an effectiveat@ of 80.7% and 7.6%
2014 and 2013, respectively. The 2014 income taerse is primarily due to deferred taxes on theranation of goodwill for tax purpos
and the results of foreign operations.

As a result of our various acquisitions in prioagg utilization of the net operating losses amdlicrcarryforwards may be subject
substantial annual limitation due to the “changewnership”provisions of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 @&hnual limitation me
result in the expiration of net operating lossef®teeutilization.

Due to the uncertainty surrounding the timing ddli@ng the benefits of our favorable tax attritaifa future tax returns, we he
placed a valuation allowance against our net dedetax asset, exclusive of goodwill. During 2014, icreased the valuation allowance
approximately $563,000 due primarily to operatiansjuding expiration of tax carryforwards. Appimately $8.3 million of the valuatic
allowance relates to tax benefits for stock optleductions included in our net operating loss d¢arward which we will allocate, if and wh
realized, directly to contributed capital to théemt the benefits exceed amounts attributable ¢k loeferred compensation expense.

We consider the undistributed earnings of our fpreubsidiaries permanently reinvested and, aaegldiwe have not provided 1
U.S. federal or state income taxes thereon.

Net Loss

Net loss was $262,000 in 2014. Net loss was $1llfomin 2013. The decrease in net loss was $lildom or 84.2%. Net loss as
percentage of total revenues was 1.0% and 6.59%14 and 2013, respectively.
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LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

At and for the year ended
December 31,
2014 2013

(in thousands)

Working capital defici $ (7,319 % (7,837)
Cash, cash equivalents and s-term investment 32C 3,93¢
Cash provided by operating activiti 2,70¢ 2,02t
Cash used in investing activiti (4,200 (43%)
Cash (used in) provided by financing activit (2,14%) 17C

Working Capital. We had a working capital deficit of $7.3 milliam December 31, 2014, a decrease in our defi688,000 fror
the $7.8 million deficit at December 31, 2013. Twerking capital deficit at December 31, 2014 imga $10.6 million of deferr
revenue. Deferred revenue is an obligation toqguarffuture services. We expect that deferred regemill convert to future revenue as
perform our services, but this does not represdgntdé payments. Deferred revenue can vary basexskbasonality, expiration of initial multi-
year contracts and deals that are billed afterémgintation rather than in advance of service dsliw&e attribute the decrease in our worl
capital deficit to an increase in accounts recdevath $1.4 million together with a decrease in therent portion of notes payable of $
million and a decrease in accounts payable of I086, This is offset by a decrease in cash and eqsivalents and restricted cash of ¢
million and an increase in the current portion efedred revenue of $582,000 in 2014 compared t8204sh and cash equivalents and cu
notes payable decreased primarily due to the payfatie Deerpath note and the payoff of the PeagbeChote (through the settlement of
litigation), offset by the new term note with Wellargo in the first quarter of 2014.

Operating Activities. Cash provided by operating activities was $2ilfian in 2014 and $2.0 million in 2013. The $2.7llfon of
cash provided by operating activities during 20Xk wwrimarily driven by net income (after adjustmfemtnoncash items) of $3.3 million a
the release of restricted cash of $400,000, offgedin increase in accounts receivable of $1.4 anilli The $2.0 million of cash provided
operating activities during 2013 was primarily dnivby growth in deferred revenue of $928,000 andrmoeme (after adjustment for naast
items) of $1.7 million.

Investing Activities. Cash used in investing activities during 2014 %4.2 million. The cash used in investing adgegiin 2014 we
primarily comprised of acquisitions of FotoPunchl &oomtag, net of cash acquired, of $3.4 milliod parchases of $807,000 of property
equipment. Cash used in investing activities du013 was $435,000. The cash used in investirigitée in 2013 was primarily compris
of purchases of $383,000 of property and equipraadtpurchases of intangible assets of $62,00004¢h we believe our current operati
are not capital intensive, we anticipate approxatya$800,000 of 2015 capital expenditures to upgradr infrastructure and position it
future growth.

Financing Activities. Cash used in financing activities during 2014sv#2.1 million. We borrowed $18.2 million, offsey ote
payable payments, payments on amendment of seates payable and debt financing fees of $20.6 anil[see Recent Developments
Note 6— Notes Payable of the accompanying financial statésheThis was offset by insurance proceeds redefoe settlement of a not
payable dispute, net of expenses, of $372,000. @aslided by financing activities during 2013 wak7$,000. In 2013, we borrowed $
million, as well as received $3.4 million in casbrh stock issuances, offset by note payable paysradr#6.9 million.

Sources of Liquidity. As of December 31, 2014, Aswserincipal sources of liquidity consisted of appneately $320,000 of ca
and cash equivalents, future cash generated fraratipns and $395 ,0G#yailable for borrowing under our Wells Fargo rexesldiscussed
Note 6— Notes Payable of the accompanying financial stateés. We believe that we have and/or will genesaftécient cash for our short-
and longterm needs. Based on current internal projectiorgs pelieve that we have and/or will generate sigffit cash for our operatiot
needs, including any required debt payments, fdeadt the next twelve months. We currently profeat we can generate positive cash fl
from our operating activities for at least the nisxtlve months.

Our management team is focused on growing ouriegisbftware operations and is also seeking additistrategic acquisitions 1
the near future. At present, we plan to fund aryri acquisition with equity, existing cash andhcaguivalents cash generated from fu
operations and/or cash or debt raised from outsiddieces. As discussed in Note Aequisitions of the accompanying financial statetagwe
acquired all of the outstanding common stock obPoinch in July 2014 and substantially all the assERoomtag in August 2014.
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Debt Matters

In February 2014, we reached an agreement to sdtttéaims and dismiss all pending litigation wiBteopleCube Holding B.V. a
Meeting Maker Holding B.V., the sellers of the ¢dapstock of Meeting Maker United States, Inc. (dba PeopleCube) that we psecha Jul
2012.

Under the settlement agreement, the parties disahif®e litigation and we settled the remaining hedadue of $2.5 million on t
Subordinated Notes Payable: PeopleCube Acquisiote by paying $1.7 million. Our insurance carréggreed to pay us $500,000
conjunction with the settlement. With the insurapceceeds and after offsetting any related litmattosts incurred in 2014, we recorded ¢
gain of $1.0 million on the settlement in the figstarter of 2014. We paid this note in full in 2014

In March 2014, we entered into a Credit Agreemaeittt W/ells Fargo Bank, N.A., as administrative agamd the lenders that are pi
thereto. The Credit Agreement provides for a teoanlin the amount of $15.0 million. The term loaill wature in March 2019. Tt
outstanding principal amount of the term loan iggide follows:

$187,500 on June 30, 2014 and the last day of feszai quarter thereafter up to March 31, 2C
$281,250 on June 30, 2016 and the last day of el quarter thereafter up to March 31, 2017;
$375,000 on June 30, 2017 and the last day of fesedi quarter thereafte

In March 2014, we used the proceeds of the term todinance the repayment of all amounts outstamdinder our loan agreem
with Deerpath and the payment of certain feesscastl expenses related to the Credit Agreemenrd. DEerpath loan bore interest at a floe
annual rate equal to LIBOR plus 8.0%, subject tdBOR floor of 9.5%, or a minimum of 11.5%. We imoed a ondime charge in the fir
quarter of 2014, of approximately $1.4 million innmection with the refinancing, of which approxielgt$700,000 was nocash deferre
financing costs.

The Credit Agreement also provides for a revohMimgn commitment in the aggregate amount of up t0 $dllion. The outstandir
principal amount of the revolving loan is due arayable in March 2019. Additionally, the Credit Agneent provides for a $10.0 milli
uncommitted incremental term loan facility to sugiggermitted acquisitions.

The term loan and revolving loan will bear inter@dgtour option, at (i) the greater of 1% or LIBQ#R)s an applicable margin or (i
base rate (as defined in the Credit Agreement) afuapplicable margin. We have elected to usd.lBOR rate plus the applicable marg
which is 5% for the first nine months ended DecenBfe 2014. Interest is payable monthly and theginavaries based upon our lever
ratio. See table below of applicable margin rates.

Total Leverage Ratio Base Rate Margin LIBOR Rate Margin
> 2.75:1.C 3.00% 4.00%
< 2.75:1.0 but > 2.25: 2.50% 3.50%
< 2.25:1 2.00% 3.00%

We may voluntarily prepay the principal amount tansling under the revolving loan at any time withpanalty. We must pay
premium if we make a voluntary prepayment of outsiag principal under the term loan during thetfirgo years following the closing date
if we are required to prepay outstanding principader the Credit Agreement with proceeds resuftiog certain asset sales or debt incurre
The premium is 1% or 0.5% of the principal amoueting prepaid depending on whether the prepaymectirecon or before the fil
anniversary of the closing date or subsequentdditst anniversary date through the second ansargrof the closing date. In addition, we
required to repay outstanding principal with 50%e&tess cash flow, certain over advances, assepsateeds, debt proceeds, and proc
from judgments and settlements.

Under the Credit Agreement, we are required to taaima fixed charge coverage ratio of not less th&nto 1.0 beginning with tl
quarter ending June 30, 2014 and each calendatequlaereafter, and a leverage ratio of not gretit@n 3.5 to 1.0 beginning with the qua
ending June 30, 2014 with the levels stepping dtheneafter. The Credit Agreement was amended irusiug014 to revise the leverage r
beginning with the quarter ending September 30,42l a leverage ratio of not greater than 3.6 ® With the levels stepping do
thereafter. The Credit Agreement was amended incM&015 to authorize us to optionally prepay, eabjto specified conditions, t
Subordinated Note Payable to Roomtag and to rekieséeverage ratio beginning with the quarter endedch 31, 2015 to a leverage ratic
not greater than 3.5 to 1.0 with the levels stegpiown thereafter.

The Credit Agreement contains customary affirmatwel negative covenants, including, among othérstaltions with respect
debt, liens, fundamental changes, sale of assefsapment of debt, investments, dividends, ands&retions with affiliates.
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We were in compliance with the covenant requiresast of December 31, 2014 and expect to be in ¢anga or be able to obt:
compliance through debt repayments with the avigilabsh on hand or as expected to be generatedofpenations over the subsequent tw
month period.

The Credit Agreement contains customary eventsefdudt, including, among others, payment defauts/enant defaults, judgme
defaults, bankruptcy and insolvency events, cresaudts to certain indebtedness, incorrect reptasiens or warranties, and change of cor
In some cases, the defaults are subject to cusyomedice and grace period provisions.

In March 2014 and in connection with the Credit égment, we and our whollywned active subsidiaries entered into a Guaramt
Security Agreement with Wells Fargo Bank. Under Gearanty and Security Agreement, we and each ofvbolly-owned active subsidiari
have guaranteed all obligations under the Credie@gent and granted a security interest in subiatigrall of our and our subsidiaries’ assets.

See Note 6 Note Payable in the accompanying financial statésnfor more information about the Credit Agreemand Guarant
and Security Agreement.

We cannot assure that we can grow our cash balamdasit our cash consumption and thus maintaifigent cash balances for ¢
planned operations or future acquisitions. Futwsiness demands may lead to cash utilization aldayreater than recently experienced.
may need to raise additional capital in the futlitewever, we cannot assure that we will be ablaige additional capital on acceptable te
or at all. Subject to the foregoing, managemeniebes that we have sufficient capital and liquididyfund and cultivate the growth of «
current and future operations for at least the hegtve months and to maintain compliance withtémens of our debt agreements and rel
covenants or to obtain compliance through debtymmeats made with the available cash on hand ocipated for receipt in the ordin:
course of operations.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

We have prepared our consolidated financial statésria accordance with U.S. generally acceptedwattany principles and includi
the accounts of Asure’wholly owned subsidiaries. We have eliminated sadinificant intercompany transactions and balaniceshe
consolidation. Preparation of the consolidatedrfaial statements in conformity with U.S. generallycepted accounting principles requ
management to make estimates and assumptionsffiaett the reported amounts of the assets and iligisil the disclosure of contingent as
and liabilities at the date of the financial sta¢eits and the reported amounts of revenues and sxpeturing the reporting period. Th
estimates are subjective in nature and involve uelgs that affect the reported amounts of assetdiailities, the disclosure of conting:
assets and liabilities at fiscal year end and ép®nted amounts of revenues and expenses durirfistiaéyear. The more significant estim:
made by management include the valuation allowdoceour gross deferred tax asset, lease impairmesgful lives of fixed assets, -
determination of the fair value of our loliged assets and the fair value of assets acqainediabilities assumed during acquisitions. Wee
our estimates on historical experience and on wuariother assumptions that management believes emgomable under the gi
circumstances. These estimates could be matedé#figrent under different conditions and assummioAdditionally, the actual amou
could differ from the estimates made. Managemenmiogieally evaluates estimates used in the prejmaradf our financial statements
continued reasonableness. We prospectively apgisoapate adjustments, if any, to our estimategtagpon our periodic evaluation.

We believe the following are our critical accougtipolicies:
Revenue Recognition

Our revenues consist of software-as-a-service 8aatferings, timebased software subscriptions, and perpetual sadtliGense sa
arrangements that also, typically, include hardwanaintenance/support and professional servicemezltss. We recognize revenue w
persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists,aifglivas occurred, the fee is fixed or determinallé collectability is probable. Software
and software-related elements are recognized inordance with Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC")985-605 Software Revenue
Recognition . Non-software revenue elements are recognire@cicordance with ASC 605-2Bevenue Recognition Multiple-Element
Arrangements. Since we currently offer our software solutions emnelither a perpetual license, tithased subscription or SaaS model, rev
recognition timing varies based on which form ditware rights the customer purchases.

SaaS arrangements and tilveesed software subscriptions typically have anainierm ranging from one to three years anc
renewable on an annual basis. A typical SaaS geraant will also include hardware, setup and imgletation services. We allocate the vi
of the SaaS arrangement to each separate unitcofiating based on vendor-specific objective evidefiy SOE”) of selling price, when
exists, thirdparty evidence of selling price for like servicesest estimated selling price. Revenue allocaidie SaaS/software subscrip
element is recognized ratably over the mamcellable term of the SaaS/subscription senRe/enue allocated to other units of accour
included in the arrangement are recognized asheutlin the paragraphs below.
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Perpetual software licenses are typically sold inltiple-element arrangements that include hardware, maintaisupport ai
professional services. Software license revendetgrmined under the residual method, are generafiggnized on the date the produt
delivered to the customer if VSOE of fair valuestgifor all undelivered elements of the softwaramgement. If VSOE of fair value does
exist for an undelivered element, the entire saftwarrangement is deferred and recognized rataivgr the remaining nooancellabl
maintenance term after all other undelivered eléaméave been delivered. We base VSOE of fair vedueour maintenance, training ¢
installation services on the prices charged fos¢hservices when sold separately. Revenue altb¢catbardware, maintenance and sen
elements included in the arrangement are recogrigexnltiined below.

Hardware devices sold to customers (typically toluek, LCD panel and other peripheral devices)rarteessential to the functional
of the software and as such are treated assofimare elements for revenue recognition purpostedware revenue is recognized when
passes to the customer, typically the date thewselis shipped. If hardware is sold under a Haa&hgement, title to the hardware rem
with Asure and hardware usage revenue is recogmaatly over the non-cancellable term of the hamdvservice delivery, typically one year.

Our professional services offerings which typicatiglude data migration, set up, training, and empéntation services are also
essential to the functionality of our products.tlaisd parties or customers themselves can perfbiese services. Set up and implement
services typically occur at the start of the sofevarrangement while certain other professionalises, depending on the nature of the ser
and customer requirements, may occur several mdaithrs Professional services performed for adfifee can be reasonably estimated an
recognized on a proportional performance basis.eRa® for professional services engagements billech dime and materials basis
recognized as the services are delivered. Reveonesll other professional services engagementsreregnized upon the earlier of
completion of the services deliverable or the eagn of the customer’s right to receive the savic

Maintenance/support revenues are recognized ratalMgr the noreancellable term of the support agreement. |
maintenance/support terms are typically one toetlgesmars and are renewable on an annual basis.

We do not recognize revenue for agreements wittsigf return, refundable fees, cancellation rigiitsubstantive acceptance cla
until these return, refund or cancellation rightsén expired or acceptance has occurred. Our amaggts with resellers do not allow for
rights of return.

Deferred revenue includes amounts received fromomeys in excess of revenue recognized, and is gGsetp of deferre
maintenance, service and other revenue. We repagleferred revenues when we complete the sermt@wer the terms of the arrangeme
primarily ranging from one to three years.

Intangible Assets and Goodwiill

We record the assets acquired and liabilities asgum business combinations at their respectiveviues at the date of acquisiti
with any excess purchase price recorded as goodieillation of intangible assets andprecess research and development entails signt
estimates and assumptions including, but not lisnite estimating future cash flows from producesaldeveloping appropriate discount r:
estimating probability rates for the continuatidncastomer relationships and renewal of custometracts and approximating the useful li
of the intangible assets acquired. U.S. generalbegpted accounting principles (“GAAPIgquire that we not amortize intangible assetsr
than goodwill with an indefinite life until we detaine their life as finite. We must amortize ather intangible assets over their useful li
We currently amortize our acquired intangible asgéth definite lives over periods ranging from doaine years.

Impairment of Intangible Assets and Long-Lived Assts

In accordance with Financial Accounting Standardsr@ (“FASB”) ASC 350, we review and evaluate oonddived assets f
impairment whenever events or changes in circurastaindicate that we may not recover their net beakie. When such factors ¢
circumstances exist, including those noted abowecampare the assetsarrying amounts against the estimated undiscourast flows w
expect to generate with those assets over théinastd useful lives. If the carrying amounts areager than the undiscounted cash flows
estimate the fair values of those assets by digoauthe projected cash flows. We record any exadsthe carrying amounts over the
values as impairments in that fiscal period. Thexe been no impairment of intangible assets argtlisad assets for the periods presented.

Gooduwill represents the excess of the purchase i@ business combination over the fair valuaaiftangible and intangible as:
acquired in a business combination. We test goddarilimpairment on an annual basis in the fouititdl quarter of each year, and betw
annual tests if indicators of potential impairmertst, using a fair-valubased approach. There has been no impairment awgibdor the
periods presented. See Notes 4 and 5 in the aceymgafinancial statements for additional infornaatiregarding goodwill.
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Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In July 2013, FASB issued Accounting Standards Wp@#SU”) No. 2013-11 (ASU 20134), which updated the guidance in A
Topic 740, Income Taxes. The amendments in ASU 2013- generally provide guidance for the presentationnrecognized tax benefits wt
a net operating loss carryforward, a similar tagsjoor a tax credit carryforward exists at the répg date. The guidance requires
unrecognized tax benefit to be presented as a @exi@ a deferred tax asset where a net operaigsy & similar tax loss, or a tax cr
carryforward exists and certain criteria are métisTguidance became effective for us as of JantiaR014 and is consistent with our pre
practice.

In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014-B8yenue from Contracts with Customers . This new standard will replace the cur
U.S. GAAP guidance on revenue recognition and elit& all industryspecific guidance. The new revenue recognitiondsteth provides
unified model to determine when and how revenugéegnized. The core principle is that a compamukhrecognize revenue to depict
transfer of promised goods or services to custonmeen amount that reflects the consideration faicl the entity expects to be entitlec
exchange for those goods or services. We will adoigtstandard effective January 1, 2017, as reduifhe standard can be applied e
retrospectively to each period presented or asrautative-effect adjustment as of the date of adoption. VWeeamluating the impact of adopt
this new standard on our financial statements.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

We are a smaller reporting company as defined g R2b2 under the Exchange Act and are not required dwige the informatio
required under this Item.

ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DA TA

The financial statements and supplementary datairextjby this Item 8 are listed in Items 15(a)(fhyl&2) of Part Il of this Repc
( Exhibits, Financial Satement Schedules).

| TEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNT ANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE
None.

IT EM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Evaluation of Disclosure Control and Procedures

Based on an evaluation under the supervision arld thie participation of our management, our priatipxecutive officer ar
principal financial officer have concluded that alisclosure controls and procedures as defineduilesR13a-15(e) and 15kb(e) under tF
Exchange Act were effective as of December 31, 20Jgtovide reasonable assurance that informagqgunired to be disclosed by us in rep
that we file or submit under the Exchange Act )adtorded, processed, summarized and reportednwiite time periods specified in 1
Securities and Exchange Commission rules and famnaks (i) accumulated and communicated to our mamagé including our princip
executive officer and principal financial officexs appropriate to allow timely decisions regardeguired disclosure.

Management's Report on Internal Control over Finandal Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishingraaititaining adequate internal control over finahmgorting (as defined in Rt
13a415(f) under the Exchange Act). Management conduate@valuation of the effectiveness of our intem@itrol over financial reportit
based on the criteria set forth in Internal Contrbitegrated Framework issued by the Committee ohSpieng Organizations of the Tready
Commission (1992 Framework) (“COSO'Based on our assessment, management has conchatedut internal control over financ
reporting was effective as of December 31, 2014ravide reasonable assurance regarding the réfjalof financial reporting and tl
preparation of financial statements in accordanitie W.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

This annual report does not include an attestatmort of our independent registered public acdagnfirm regarding our intern

control over financial reporting. Managementeport was not subject to attestation by our pedéeent registered public accounting |
pursuant to the rules of the Securities and Exch&@mmmission that permit us to provide only manag#ta reporting in this annual report.
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PART Il
IT EM 10. DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT

The information required under this Item is incaaded by reference from our definitive proxy statemnto be filed relating to o
2015 annual meeting of shareholders.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information required under this Item is incaaded by reference from our definitive proxy statemnto be filed relating to o
2015 annual meeting of shareholders.

IT EM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OW NERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The information required under this Item is incagied by reference from our definitive proxy stageinto be filed relating to o
2015 annual meeting of shareholders.

IT EM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSA CTIONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

The information required under this Item is incaaded by reference from our definitive proxy statemnto be filed relating to o
2015 annual meeting of shareholders.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

The information required under this Item is incaaded by reference from our definitive proxy statemnto be filed relating to o
2015 annual meeting of shareholders.
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PART IV
ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDUL ES
(a) Financial Statements and Financial Statements Scheks
(1) The following financial statements of the Compay are filed as a part of this Report:
Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindrirm
Consolidated Financial Statements
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31,£012013
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Loshiéoyé¢ars ended December 31, 2014 and 2013
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockhol&eysity for the years ended December 31, 2014 848 2
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the yeated December 31, 2014 and 2013
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(2) Financial Statement Schedules:
All schedules for which provision is made in theplgable account regulation of the Securities andhang
Commission are either not required under the rélatstructions, are inapplicable or the requirefbrimation is included elsewhere in
Consolidated Financial Statements and incorporateein by reference.
(b) Exhibits

The exhibits filed in response to Item 601 of Regations S-K are listed in the Index to the Exhibits.
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Ind ex To Financial Statements and Financial Stateent Schedules (Item 15(a)(1) of Part 1V)

Report of Independent Registered Public AccourfEing

Financial Statement
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31,&01201:
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Loshéye¢ars ended December 31, 2014 and
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockh¢ Equity for the years ended December 31, 2014 a8 .
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the yeaadted December 31, 2014 and 2
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statem
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RE PORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
The Board of Directors and Shareholders of Asulféw®oe, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balaheets of Asure Software, Inc. as of DecembefB14 and 2013, and the rele
consolidated statements of comprehensive loss,gelsaim stockholderstquity, and cash flows for each of the two yeartha period ende
December 31, 2014. These financial statementshareesponsibility of the Comparsymanagement. Our responsibility is to expresspaman
on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting OversighafBioUnited States). Those stand
require that we plan and perform the audit to ebta@asonable assurance about whether the finaptaggments are free of mate
misstatement. We were not engaged to perform ait afidhe Companys internal control over financial reporting. Ourdés includet
consideration of internal control over financiapogting as a basis for designing audit procedurasdre appropriate in the circumstances
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion onefffiectiveness of the Compasyinternal control over financial reporting. Accmgly, we
express no such opinion. An audit also includesmixiag, on a test basis, evidence supporting theusms and disclosures in the finan
statements, assessing the accounting principled asd significant estimates made by management,esatiiating the overall financ
statement presentation. We believe that our apditgide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referrecabove present fairly, in all material respedtg tonsolidated financial position of As

Software, Inc. at December 31, 2014 and 2013, haddnsolidated results of its operations andashdlows for each of the two years in
period ended December 31, 2014, in conformity wit8. generally accepted accounting principles.

/sl Ernst & Young LLF

Austin, Texas
March 27, 2015
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A S URE SOFTWARE, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(Amounts in thousands)

Assets
Current asset:
Cash and cash equivalel
Restricted cas
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doub#fttounts of $120 and $168 at December 31, 2
and December 31, 2013, respectiv
Inventory
Notes receivabl
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Total current assets
Property and equipment, r
Goodwill
Intangible assets, n
Other assets

Total assets

Liabilities and stockholders’ equity
Current liabilities:
Current portion of notes payat
Accounts payabl
Accrued compensation and bene
Other accrued liabilitie
Deferred revenue
Total current liabilities
Long-term liabilities:
Deferred revenu
Notes payabli
Other liabilities
Total long-term liabilities
Stockholder' equity:
Preferred stock, $.01 par value; 1,500 shares ggéth none issued or outstand
Common stock, $.01 par value; 11,000 shares aatairs,434 and 6,353 shares issued,
6,050 and 5,969 shares outstanding at Decemb&034,and December 31, 2013, respecti
Treasury stock at cost, 384 shares at Decemb&034, and December 31, 20
Additional paic-in capital
Accumulated defici
Accumulated other comprehensive loss

Total stockholders’ equity
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity

December 31

December 31

2014 2013
$ 32 $ 3,93¢
- 40(

5,20t 3,90:

17¢ 77

- 9

1,30: 1,33¢

7,08¢ 9,66(

1,53¢ 1,23:

17,50( 15,00

8,32: 9,67¢

19 38

$ 3446 $ 35,61
$ 75¢ $ 4,30¢
1,53¢ 1,66¢

35¢ 47z

1,12¢ 08¢

10,64 10,05¢

14,40; 17,49

47E 75¢

14,38 12,69¢

73¢ 444

15,50 13,90

64 63

(5,017 (5,017

278,65 278,15
(269,141 (268,88))

(86) (109

4,471 4,21

$ 34.46¢ $ 35,61

The accompanying notes are an integral part ottheasolidated financial statements.
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ASU RE SOFTWARE, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE LOSS

(Amounts in thousands, except share and per sladag d

Revenue:
Cost of Sales

Gross margin

Operating expense:!
Selling, general and administrati
Research and developme
Amortization of intangible assets

Total operating expense:
Income from operations

Other income (loss)
Gain on settlement of note payable and litiga
Interest income
Gain on sale/disposal of ass
Loss on debt refinancir
Foreign currency los
Interest expense and ott
Interest expense- amortization of original issigedint (OID)

Total other loss, net

Loss from operations before income taxe
Income tax provision

Net loss

Other comprehensive loss
Foreign currency translation gain (loss)
Other comprehensive los!

Basic and diluted net loss per shar

Basic

Diluted

Weighted average basic and diluted shares
Basic

Diluted

FOR THE
TWELVE MONTHS ENDED
DECEMBER 31,
2014 2013
$ 27,20¢ $ 25,47+
6,31¢ 6,42¢
20,89: 19,04¢
13,99¢ 13,25:
3,31( 2,83t
1,99¢ 2,18(
19,30¢ 18,26"
1,58¢ 782
1,03¢ -
(1) 49
- 72
(1,402 -
(14) (24)
(1,279 (1,949
(72) (481)
(1,729 (2,327
(14%) (1,545
(117) (117)
$ (262) $ (1,66%)
18 @)
$ (244 $ (1,662
$ (0.0 $ (0.29)
$ (0.09 $ (0.29
6,002,00! 5,661,00
6,002,00! 5,661,00

The accompanying notes are an integral part afetltensolidated financial statements.
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ASU RE SOFTWARE, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
(Amounts in thousands)

Common Common Additional Other Total
Stock Stock Treasury Paid-in Accumulated Comprehensive Stockholders
Outstanding Amount Stock Capital Deficit Loss Equity
BALANCE AT
DECEMBER 31,
2012 525 $ 5€ $ (5,017 $ 274,44 $ (267,22) $ (102) $ 2,16(
Share based
compensatiol 16C 16C
Stock issued upon
option exercist 17 35 35
Issuance of stock
upon conversion of
convertible deb 3C 93 93
Issuance of stock
upon private offering
net of offering cost 662 7 3,42¢ 3,43:
Net loss (1,662 (1,662
Other comprehensivi
loss (2) (2)
BALANCE AT
DECEMBER 31,
2013 5965 $ 63 $ (5,01 $ 278,15¢ $ (268,889 $ (109 $ 4,217
Share based
compensatiol 22¢€ 22¢
Stock issued upon
option exercist 12 24 24
Issuance of stock
upon conversion of
convertible deb 75 247 24¢
Net loss (262) (262)
Other comprehensivi
income 18 18
BALANCE AT
DECEMBER 31,
2014 6,05C $ 64 $ (5,017 $ 278,65t $ (269,140 $ (86) $ 4,471

The accompanying notes are an integral part ottheasolidated financial statements.
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AS URE SOFTWARE, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(Amounts in thousands)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net loss
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash piextiby operation:
Depreciation and amortizatic
Provision for doubtful accoun
Sharebased compensatic
Interest income on settleme
Gain on sale/disposal of ass
Amortization of original issue discount (Oll
Gain on debt payo!
Gain on settlement of note payable and litiga
Loss on debt refinancir
Changes in operating assets and liabilit
Restricted cas
Accounts receivabl
Inventory
Prepaid expenses and other as
Accounts payabl
Accrued expenses and other |-term obligations
Deferred revenue

Net cash provided by operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Acquisitions, net of cash acquir
Purchases of property and equipm
Disposals of property and equipmi
Collection of note receivab
Purchases of intangible assets

Net cash used in investing activitie

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from notes payal
Payments on notes payal
Payments on amendment of senior notes pa
Debt financing fee
Payments on capital leas
Insurance proceeds for settlement of notes payhgpeite, net of expens
Net proceeds from issuance of common s
Net proceeds from exercise of stock options

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activitie
Effect of foreign exchange rate:

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivake
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period
Cash and cash equivalents at end of peric

SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION:
Cash paid for
Interest

Non-cash Investing and Financing Activitie
Conversion of subordinated convertible notes payabkequity
Accrued contingent consideration upon acquisi

FOR THE
YEAR ENDED
DECEMBER 31,

2014 2013
(262 $ (1,662
2,821 2,947

48 37
22€ 16C

- (49)

- (72)

72 481

- (99)
(1,03 -
1,40: -
40¢ (150
(1,419 (899
(93) 177
(82) 49E
(13€) (1,008)
55C 737
217 92¢
2,70¢ 2,02t
(3,440) 5
(807) (389)
38 -

9 10

- (62
(4,200) (43F)
18,18: 4,00(
(19,317 (6,880)
(704) (330)
(565) -
(144) (88)
372 -

: 3,43:

24 35
2,147 17¢
23 1
(3,619) 1,761
3,93¢ 2,171
32 $ 3,93¢
941 $ 1,461
24¢ 93
327 -

The accompanying notes are an integral part ottheasolidated financial statements.
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A S URE SOFTWARE, INC.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Amounts in thousands, except share and per shareth or otherwise noted)

NOTE 1 - THE COMPANY

Asure Software, Inc., a Delaware corporation inooaped in 1985, is a provider of cloud-based safwas-a-service (“Saap”
time and labor management and workspace managawleitibns that enable organizations to manage diéde environments, as well as tt
human resource and payroll processes effectivadyefficiently. Asure develops, markets, sells anpp®rts its offerings worldwide through
principal office in Austin, Texas, and through addial offices in Warwick, Rhode Island; FraminghaMassachusetts; Traverse C
Michigan and Staines, United Kingdom.

NOTE 2 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

BASIS OF PRESENTATION

Asure has prepared its consolidated financial statgs in accordance with U.S. generally accepteduating principles and h
included the accounts of its wholly owned subsid@r We have eliminated all significant intercompamansactions and balances
consolidation. Asure has made certain reclassifioatto the prior year's financial statements tofoan to the current year presentation.

SEGMENTS
The chief operating decision maker is Asure’s CEeécutive Officer who reviews financial informatipresented on a compamyde
basis. Accordingly, in accordance with FinanciacAunting Standards Board (“FASB”) Accounting Stami$ Codification (“ASC")280

Asure determined that it has a single reportingressg and operating unit structure.

USE OF ESTIMATES

Preparation of the consolidated financial statesi@nt conformity with U.S. generally accepted acdown principles require
management to make estimates and assumptionsffduett the reported amounts of the assets and iligisil the disclosure of contingent as
and liabilities at the date of the financial sta¢eits and the reported amounts of revenues and sspeturing the reporting period. Th
estimates are subjective in nature and involve uelgs that affect the reported amounts of assetdialilities, the disclosure of conting:
assets and liabilities at fiscal year end and ép®nted amounts of revenues and expenses durirfgstiaéyear. The more significant estim:
made by management include the valuation allowdocehe gross deferred tax assets, lease impairnuseful lives of fixed assets,
determination of the fair value of its loiged assets, and the fair value of assets acquainedliabilities assumed during acquisitions. A
bases its estimates on historical experience andvarious other assumptions its management beliggasonable under the gi
circumstances. These estimates could be matedé#figrent under different conditions and assummioAdditionally, the actual amou
could differ from the estimates made. Managemenmiogieally evaluates estimates used in the prejmradf the financial statements
continued reasonableness. Asure makes appropdiigt@ents, if any, to the estimates used prospagtbased upon such periodic evaluat

CONTINGENCIES

In February 2014, we reached an agreement to sdtttéaims and dismiss all pending litigation wiBteopleCube Holding B.V. a
Meeting Maker Holding B.V., the sellers of the ¢apstock of Meeting Maker United States, Inc. (dba PeopleCube) that we psechan Jul
2012.

Under the settlement agreement, the parties agoedidmiss the litigation and we settled the renmgjbalance due by us of $2,46C
the Subordinated Notes Payable: PeopleCube Acguishote for $1,700. Separately, our insurance iearagreed to pay us $500
conjunction with the settlement. With the insuramroceeds and after offsetting any related likigagnd other settlement costs incurre
2014 of $226, we recorded a net gain of $1,034hensettlement in the first quarter of 2014. Wedghis note in full in the first quarter
2014. Finally, as part of the original purchase@iin the Meeting Maker acquisition, we issued @86,shares of our common stock subje
a lockup expiring as to 125,000 shares in June 2083130,000 shares in June 2014. This settleal®@mtremoved the lockup for the remair
130,000 shares.

Although Asure has been the defendant or plaiimiffarious actions that arose in the normal coofseusiness, as of December
2014, we are not party to any pending legal procegsd
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LIQUIDITY

As of December 31, 2014, Asuseprincipal sources of liquidity consisted of appneately $320 of cash and cash equivalents, fi
cash generated from operations and $395 availablbdrrowing under our Wells Fargo revolver diseasé Note 6 -Notes Payable. Ca
and cash equivalents were $3,938 at December 3B. Zthe Credit Agreement was amended in March 201&uthorize us to optiona
prepay, subject to specified conditions, the Suinatdd Note Payable to Roomtag and to revise therdge ratio beginning with the qua
ended March 31, 2015 to a leverage ratio of naatgrehan 3.5 to 1.0 with the levels stepping ddlwareafter. We were in compliance with
covenant requirements as of December 31, 2014 gmeteto be in compliance or be able to obtain d@mpe through debt repayments v
the available cash on hand or as expected to beraex from operations over the subsequent twelwathmperiod. We believe that we h
and/or will generate sufficient cash for our shand longterm needs, including meeting the requirementsuofi@rm Loan, and the rela
debt covenant requirements. Based on current igtgrojections, we believe that we have and/or géherate sufficient cash for «
operational needs, including any required debt mays) for at least the next twelve months.

Management is focused on growing our existing pcbdffering, as well as our customer base, to @®eeour recurring revenues.
have made and will continue to explore additiontedtegic acquisitions. In July 2014, we acquireldoflthe outstanding common stock
FotoPunch, Inc. and in August 2014, we acquirectsutially all the assets of Roomtag, LLC. We expedund any future acquisitions w
equity, available cash, future cash from operationslebt from outside sources.

We cannot assure that we can grow our cash balamdasit our cash consumption and thus maintaifident cash balances for ¢
planned operations or future acquisitions. Futwsiness demands may lead to cash utilization aldayreater than recently experienced.
may need to raise additional capital in the futttewever, we cannot assure that we will be ablmige additional capital on acceptable te
or at all. Subject to the foregoing, managemeniebes that we have sufficient capital and liquididyfund and cultivate the growth of «
current and future operations for at least the hegtve months and to maintain compliance withtiémens of our debt agreements and rel
covenants or to obtain compliance through debtymmeats made with the available cash on hand ocipated for receipt in the ordin:
course of operations.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents include cash deposithighly liquid investments with an original matyriof three months or less wr
purchased.

RESTRICTED CASH

Restricted cash represented a certificate of depmdd in a cash collateral account as requiredJBilorgan Chase Bank N
(“Bank”), to secure our obligations under our ctexdird obligations with the Bank. As of December 3114, there is no restricted cash.

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

We apply the authoritative guidance on fair valusasurements for financial assets and liabilities #re measured at fair value ¢
recurring basis, and ndimancial assets and liabilities such as goodwillangible assets and property and equipment tieat&asured at f:
value on a non-recurring basis.

CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK

We grant credit to customers in the ordinary cowrkbusiness. We limit concentrations of crediknielated to our trade accou
receivable due to our large number of customedudiing thirdparty resellers, and their dispersion across sewedtastries and geograpl
areas. We perform ongoing credit evaluations ofaustomers and maintain reserves for potentialittlesses. We require advanced paym
or secured transactions when deemed necessary.

Asure reviews potential customers’ credit ratingevaluate customerability to pay an obligation within the paymentrterwhich i
usually net thirty days. If we receive reasonaidsurance of payment and know of no barriers talllegnforce the payment obligation,
may extend credit to customers. We place accoumt®Coedit Hold” if a placed order exceeds the credit limit or seadheircumstance
warrant. We follow our credit policy consistendlgd routinely monitor our delinquent accounts fatications of uncollectability.
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ALLOWANCE FOR DOUBTFUL ACCOUNTS

Asure maintains an allowance for doubtful accowttan amount we estimate to be sufficient to pddequate protection aga
losses resulting from extending credit to our cotrs. We base this allowance, in the aggregatdiisiarical collection experience, age
receivables and general economic conditions. Tloavahce for doubtful accounts also considers tredrfer specific customer reserves b
on the customer’s payment experience, credit-woetfs and age of receivable balances. Asweat debts have not been material and
been within management expectations.

The following table summarizes the annual changear allowance for doubtful accounts:

Balance at December 31, 2C $ 182
Provision for doubtful accounts receiva 37
Write-off of uncollectible accounts receivable (59
Balance at December 31, 20 $ 16¢€
Provision for doubtful accounts receiva 48
Write-off of uncollectible accounts receivable 9)
Balance at December 31, 2014 $ 12C

INVENTORY

Inventory consists of finished goods and is statiethe lower of cost or market, using the firstfirst-out method. Inventory includ
purchased LCD panels and a full range of biomednd card recognition clocks that we sell as parbwf workforce and workspa
management solutions. We routinely assess ouraod-linventory for timely identification and measuent of obsolete, slowioving o
otherwise impaired inventory.

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

We record property and equipment, including sofeydurniture and equipment, at cost less accunulildepreciation. We recc
depreciation using the straigliie method over the estimated economic usefukliviethe assets, which range from two to five ye&@wopert
and equipment also includes leasehold improvemamds capital leases which we record at cost lesanaglated amortization. We rec
amortization of leasehold improvements and cajgtdes using the straiglite method over the shorter of the lease termver the life of th
respective assets, as applicable. We recognizes gaitosses related to retirements or dispositibfixed assets in the period incurred.
expense repair and maintenance costs as incurrechéfodically review the estimated economic usk¥als of our property and equipm
and make adjustments, if necessary, accordingettatest information available.

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

Asure has accounted for our acquisitions usingattgisition method of accounting based on ASC 8Business Combinations ,
which requires recognition and measurement ofdahiifiable assets acquired and liabilities assuatettheir full fair value as of the date
obtain control. We have determined the fair valfiassets acquired and liabilities assumed based apoestimates of the fair values of as
acquired and liabilities assumed in the acquisitidBoodwill represents the excess of the purchese pver the fair value of the net tang
and identifiable intangible assets acquired. Whitkehave used our best estimates and assumptianeasure the fair value of the identific
assets acquired and liabilities assumed at theigitqo date, our estimates are inherently uncertmd subject to refinement. As a re:
during the measurement period, not to exceed oaefyem the date of acquisition, any changes ing$iimated fair values of the net as
recorded for the acquisitions will result in anwslinent to goodwill. Upon the conclusion of the maament period or final determinatior
the values of assets acquired or liabilities assljméichever comes first, we record any subseqaeéjuistments to our consolidated staten
of comprehensive loss.
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GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase jpmi@ business combination over the fair valueaiftangible and intangible ast
acquired in a business combination. We test goddarilimpairment on an annual basis in the fouiitdl quarter of each year, and betw
annual tests if indicators of potential impairmemtst, using a fair-valueased approach. There has been no impairment afwglbdor the
periods presented. See Notes 4 and 5 for additiof@mation regarding goodwill. We amortize intéllg assets not considered to haw
indefinite useful life using the straighthe method over their useful lives. We currentipatize our acquired intangible assets with ded
lives over periods ranging from one to nine yekexh reporting period, we evaluate the estimatethir@ng useful life of intangible assets
assess whether events or changes in circumstarazeagniva revision to the remaining period of anzatton or indicate that impairment exi
We have not identified any impairments of finiteddl intangible assets during any of the periodsented. See Note 5Goodwill and Othe
Intangible Assets for additional information regagdintangible assets.

IMPAIRMENT OF LONG -LIVED ASSETS

In accordance with ASC 350, Asure reviews and etehi our londived assets for impairment whenever events or gbsntr
circumstances indicate that we may not recover theif book value. When such factors and circuntgisirexist, we compare the asset:
carrying amounts against the estimated undiscowrgsH flows to be generated by those assets osierestimated useful lives. If the carry
amounts are greater than the undiscounted casls,floe estimate the fair values of those assetddmpuahting the projected cash flows.
record any excess of the carrying amounts ovefdinezalues as impairments in that fiscal periéle have identified no impairment of long-
lived assets during any of the periods presented.

ORIGINAL ISSUE DISCOUNTS

We recognize original issue discounts, when incloe the issuance of debt, as a reduction of tmeeguloan obligations that \
amortize to interest expense over the life of thlated indebtedness using the effective interdst meethod. We record the amortizatior
interest expense amortization of OID in the Consolidated Statemait€omprehensive Loss. At the time of any repurebas retirements
related debt, we will write off the remaining amowf net original issue discounts and include thenthe calculation of gain/(loss)
retirement in the consolidated statements of coh&rsive loss.

REVENUE RECOGNITION

Our revenues consist of software-as-a-service 8aatferings, timebased software subscriptions, and perpetual saftliGeanse sa
arrangements that also, typically, include hardwanaintenance/support and professional servicemezltss. We recognize revenue w
persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists,aifgllvas occurred, the fee is fixed or determinablé collectability is probable. Software
and software-related elements are recognized inrdance with ASC 985-605Software Revenue Recognition . Nonsoftware revent
elements are recognized in accordance with ASCX50Bevenue Recognition Multiple-Element Arrangements. Since we currently offer o
software solutions under either a perpetual licetisee-based subscription or SaaS model, revenue recogriitning varies based on wh
form of software rights the customer purchases.

SaaS arrangements and tilveesed software subscriptions typically have anainierm ranging from one to three years anc
renewable on an annual basis. A typical SaaS geraant will also include hardware, setup and imgletation services. We allocate the vi
of the SaaS arrangement to each separate unitcofiating based on vendor-specific objective evidefiy SOE”) of selling price, when
exists, thirdparty evidence of selling price for like servicesest estimated selling price. Revenue allocaidie SaaS/software subscrip
element is recognized ratably over the mamcellable term of the SaaS/subscription senRe/enue allocated to other units of accour
included in the arrangement are recognized asheutlin the paragraphs below.
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Perpetual software licenses are typically sold ialtiple-element arrangements that include hardware, maintaisupport ai
professional services. Software license revendetermined under the residual method, are generatlggnized on the date the produt
delivered to the customer if VSOE of fair valuestgifor all undelivered elements of the softwararsgement. If VSOE of fair value does
exist for an undelivered element, the entire saftwarrangement is deferred and recognized ratablgr the remaining nooancellabl
maintenance term after all other undelivered eléaméave beemelivered. We base VSOE of fair value for our mai@nce, training ai
installation services on the prices charged fosé¢hservices when sold separately. Revenue altb¢atbardware, maintenance and sen
elements included in the arrangement are recogmigexlitiined below.

Hardware devices sold to customers (typically totoek, LCD panel and other peripheral devices)rmteessential to the functional
of the software and as such are treated assonfimare elements for revenue recognition purpostedware revenue is recognized when
passes to the customer, typically the date thewselis shipped. If hardware is sold under a Haa&gement, title to the hardware rem
with Asure and hardware usage revenue is recogmaabtly over the non-cancellable term of the hamgvservice delivery, typically one year.

Our professional services offerings which typicatliglude data migration, set up, training, and iempéntation services are also
essential to the functionality of our products.tlaisd parties or customers themselves can perfbiese services. Set up and implement
services typically occur at the start of the sofevarrangement while certain other professionalises, depending on the nature of the ser
and customer requirements, may occur several mdaittrs Professional services performed for adfifee can be reasonably estimated an
recognized on a proportional performance basis.eRe® for professional services engagements billech dime and materials basis
recognized as the services are delivered. Reveonesll other professional services engagementsreregnized upon the earlier of
completion of the services deliverable or the eagin of the customer’s right to receive the segvic

Maintenance/support revenues are recognized ratablgr the noreancellable term of the support agreement. |i
maintenance/support terms are typically one toetlgears and are renewable on an annual basis.

We do not recognize revenue for agreements withtsigf return, refundable fees, cancellation rigittsubstantive acceptance clai
until these return, refund or cancellation righéswér expired or acceptance has occurred. Our amnamgts with resellers do not allow for .
rights of return.

Deferred revenue includes amounts received fromtomeys in excess of revenue recognized, and is kseap of deferre
maintenance, service and other revenue. We reppgleferred revenues when we complete the sermt@wer the terms of the arrangeme
primarily ranging from one to three years.

ADVERTISING COSTS

We expense advertising costs as we incur them.ediding expenses were $9 and $0 for 2014 and 2@%Bectively. We record
these expenses as part of sales and marketingsegen our Consolidated Statements of Comprehehess

LEASE OBLIGATIONS

Asure recognizes its lease obligations with sctedivént increases over the term of the lease draiglstdiine basis. Accordingly, w
charge the total amount of base rentals over time ¢¢ our leases to expense on a stralgig-method, recording the amount of rental exp
in excess of lease payments as a deferred refityias of December 31, 2014 and 2013, we hadleferred rent liabilities. We also recogr
capital lease obligations and record the underlgisgets and liabilities on our Consolidated BaleéBlveets. As of December 31, 2014 and Z
Asure had $429 and $399 in capital lease obligaticespectively.

FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION

We measure the financial statements of our forsigvsidiaries using the local currency as the foneti currency. Accordingly, v
translate the assets and liabilities of these doreiubsidiaries at current exchange rates at ealemde sheet date. We record transl:
adjustments arising from the translation of netets$ocated outside of the United States into Wni&tates dollars in accumulated o
comprehensive loss as a separate component ofhstideks’ equity. We translate income and expenses from aheign subsidiaries usi
monthly average exchange rates. We include nesgaid losses resulting from foreign exchange teitses in other income and expen
which were not significant in 2014 and 2013.
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INCOME TAXES

We account for income taxes using the liability noet under ASC 740Accounting for Income Taxes, which requires recognition
deferred tax assets and liabilities for the expkdtsure tax consequences of events included irfittencial statements. Under the liabil
method, we determine deferred tax assets andifiabibased on the difference between the finarstatement and tax bases of asset:
liabilities using enacted tax rates in effect ia tfears in which we expect the differences to meWe reduce deferred tax assets by a valt
allowance when it is more likely than not that will not realize some component or all of the deddrtax assets.

SHARE BASED COMPENSATION

We adopted Statement ASC 718 effective August 0520sing the modified prospective application $sition method. The modifie
prospective application method requires that congsarecognize compensation expense on dhasled payment awards that are modi
repurchased or cancelled after the effective ddéfe. estimate the fair value of each award grantech four stock option plans at the dat
grant using the Black-Scholes option pricing mofelring 2014 and 2013, we granted 190,000 and PD6sfbck options, respectively.

As of December 31, 2014, we expect to recognize&s ¥8unrecognized compensation costs related tevested option grants o\
the course of the following three years.

We issued 12,000 shares of common stock relaterdrises of stock options granted from our stqatioa plans for 2014 and 17,C
shares in 2013.

RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

In July 2013, FASB issued Accounting Standards Wpddo. 2013-11 (ASU 20131), which updated the guidance in ASC T
740, Income Taxes. The amendments in ASU 2Dl @enerally provide guidance for the presentatibanrecognized tax benefits when a
operating loss carryforward, a similar tax lossadax credit carryforward exists at the reportifage. The guidance requires an unrecogi
tax benefit to be presented as a decrease in aelfiax asset where a net operating loss, a sitakaloss, or a tax credit carryforward ex
and certain criteria are met. This guidance beoeaffieetive for us as of January 1, 2014 and is cbest with our present practice.

In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014-B@yenue from Contracts with Customers . This new standard will replace m
current U.S. GAAP guidance on revenue recognitind aliminate all industrgpecific guidance. The new revenue recognition dste
provides a unified model to determine when and hevenue is recognized. The core principle is thedrmpany should recognize revenu
depict the transfer of promised goods or servioesustomers in an amount that reflects the coraiier for which the entity expects to
entitled in exchange for those goods or services v adopt this standard effective January 1,722Gk required. The standard can be ap
either retrospectively to each period presentedsos cumulativeffect adjustment as of the date of adoption. Weeaaluating the impact
adopting this new standard on our financial statéme

NOTE 3 - FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

ASC 820,Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures defines fair value, establishes a framework for sneag fair value in U.¢
generally accepted accounting principles and expdistiosures about fair value measurements.

ASC 820 establishes a thréer fair value hierarchy, which is based on th@bdlity of the inputs used in measuring fair veasu Thes
tiers include:

Level 1: Quoted prices in active markets identical assets or liabilities

Level 2: Quoted prices in activarkets forsimilar assets or liabilities; quoted prices in markets tr@ not active fc
identical or similar assets or liabilities; and rel-driven valuations whose significant inputs are oballe; anc

Level 3: Unobservable inputs that are supported by littlm@market activity and that are significant to fag value of the
assets or liabilities
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The following table presents the fair value hiehgréor our financial assets measured at fair value recurring basis as of Decen
31, 2014 and 2013, respectively:

Fair Value Measure at December 31, 201

Total Quoted Significant
Carrying Prices Other Significant
Value at in Active Observable Unobservable
December 31, Market Inputs Inputs
Description 2014 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 32C $ 32C $ - $ .
Total $ 32C $ 32C $ - $ -
Liabilities:

Contingent consideration 327 $ - $ - $ 327
Total $ 327 $ - $ - 9 327

Fair Value Measure at December 31, 201
Total Quoted Significant
Carrying Prices Other Significant
Value at in Active Observable Unobservable
December 31, Market Inputs Inputs
Description 2013 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 3,93 $ 3,93t $ - $ =

Restricted cash- certificate of deposit 40C $ - $ 40C $ -
Total $ 4,33t $ 3,93t $ 40C $ .

For our level 2 asset, the fair value is basednéorination obtained from our third party serviceyider and approximates carry
value.

The following summarizes quantitative informatidsoat Level 3 fair value measurements.
Contingent consideration

In connection with the acquisition of FotoPunctg. I(fFotoPunch™)in July 2014, we recorded contingent consideraiased upon tt
expected achievement of certain milestone goaly. &hanges to the fair value of contingent consitlemadue to changes in assumptions |
in preparing the valuation model will be recorded selling, general and administrative expenseshim €onsolidated Statement
Comprehensive Loss. There have been no changkes iratuation of the contingent consideration reedrich 2014.

Contingent consideration is valued using a msdtnario discounted cash flow method. The assumpticsed in preparing t
discounted cash flow method include estimates tacames if milestone goals are achieved and thbghibity of achieving each outcon
Probabilities were estimated by management and #mpgied to managemeast’conservative case forecast, most likely casecéstean
optimistic case forecast with the various scenarios

Significant changes in any of the unobservabletspised in the fair value measurement of contingensideration in isolation cot
result in a significantly lower or higher fair valuA change in projected revenue growth rates wbaldccompanied by a directionally sin
change in fair value.

Other Financial Assets and Liabilities

Financial assets and liabilities with carrying amisuapproximating fair value include cash and ceghivalents, trade accou
receivable, accounts payable, accrued expensesthied current liabilities. The carrying amount tbiese financial assets and liabili
approximates fair value because of their short nitas.

Our line of credit and notes payable, includingrent portion, as of December 31, 2014, had a aagryialue of $15,131. Tt

carrying value approximates fair value. The failue is based on interest rates that are curramtlifable to us for issuance of debt with sin
terms and remaining maturities.
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NOTE 4 - ACQUISITIONS
2014 Acquisitions

In July 2014, Asure acquired all of the issued amtstanding shares of common stock (the “Share&frotoPunch, a Delawe
corporation, a cloud-based time and labor solupoovider whose photbased time clock technology transforms any mobéeiak into
biometric, gedecated time clock. We have been working with Fotoéh since 2012 as a technology partner for ourP@eoh™ solutior
which was launched to help customers support afear that is increasingly mobile, global and dised.

The aggregate consideration for the &haonsisted of (i) $1,500 in cash, a portion ofctviwas used to pay certain obligation
FotoPunch and (ii) up to an additional $3,000 istmiosing earnout payments. We funded the $1,500 pagment with proceeds from (
credit agreement with Wells Fargo.

The $3,000 earnout is payable over three earnaidgdse(with the first, second and third periodsiegdlune 30, 2015, June 30, 2
and June 30, 2018, respectively) based on the BotbPoperations achieving specified target reveimuas earnout period. At least 75% of
target revenues must be achieved in the first aadrgl earnout periods and at least 50% of the ttaegenues must be achieved in the
earnout period. The earnout (“contingent considen&t was recorded in Accrued Expenses in the accomparyansolidated Balance Sh
with an estimated fair value of $327 at the dataazfuisition. The fair value as of December 31£2@&imained unchanged at $327.

The purchase price was allocated based upon fhie vas follows: net assets of ($1); technolog$440; goodwill of $1,388. The f:
value of technology was determined using the incapproach.

In August 2014, Asure acquired substantially a#l #ssets of Roomtag, LLC (“RoomtagThe aggregate consideration for the a
consisted of (i) $933 in cash and (ii) an unsecuwédbrdinated promissory note (“Notdr $754. We funded the $933 cash payment
proceeds from our credit agreement with Wells Fafigee Note bears interest at an annual rate of6.88dis payable on October 31, 20
We recorded the Note at fair value using a discoaiet of 5%, which resulted in an original issuscdunt of $73, which will accrete up the r
to its aggregate principal amount over the coufdbelife of the loan using the effective interestthod. The balance of the Note at Decel
31, 2014 is $694.

The purchase price was allocated based upon fiie vas follows:

Net asset $ (60)
Trade Name¢ 35
Technology 17z
Customer Relationshif 33C
Noncompete 24
Goodwill 1,112
Total $ 1,614

2012 Acquisition

In July 2012, Asure acquired the capital stock afeling Maker — United States, Inc., doing busirees¢‘dba”) PeopleCube, for
combination of cash and Asure common stock. The 2@huisition of PeopleCube gave Asure a produet that includes software to as
customers in driving integrated facility managementoffices, conference rooms, video conferenciegents and training, alternat
workspaces and lobby use.

The purchase price was composed of $9,800 in castject to a postlosing working capital adjustment, (ii) 255,00(s¢s of oL
common stock, par value $0.01 per share, repregejust under five percent of Asusebutstanding shares and valued at $2.94 per sina
(iii) an additional $3,000 note from us due on @et031, 2014, subject to offset of any amounts olmethe seller under the indemnificat
provisions of the stock purchase agreement. The wak adjusted to a fair value of $2,404 at the dafpurchase based on our increme
borrowing rate. We recorded the note at fair valsieg a discount rate of 10%, which resulted iraginal issue discount of $622, which \
accrete up the note to its aggregate principal arnover the course of tHde of the loan using the effective interest mathDetails regardir
the financing of the acquisition are described otéN6 —Notes Payable. Transaction costs for this acqorsitiere $905 and we expensed t
as incurred.
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In December 2012, we demanded a purchase pricetadjnt from PeopleCube Holding B.V. and Meeting btaolding B.V., th
sellers of the capital stock of Meeting Makelnited States, Inc. (dba PeopleCube) that we psethén July 2012, based on matters
discovered after closing. In the third quarter26fL3, we reached an agreement to settle ourgbasing working capital adjustment dispi
The parties agreed to a padtsing working capital adjustment due to us of&48ith accrued interest of $44, totaling $540. Pheties agree
to reduce the original $3,000 deferred purchasengay by the postiosing adjustment amount of $540. This also hadefifect of reducing o
longterm debt by a like amount and $496 was deductad fsur goodwill balance. The remaining deferredcpase price balance under
Subordinated Notes Payable: PeopleCube Acquisitmte then became $2,460.

In February 2014, we reached an agreement to sdittéaims and dismiss all pending litigation witie sellers of PeopleCube. Un
the settlement agreement, the parties agreed tusdighe litigation and settle the remaining bat¢adue of $2,460 on the Subordinated N
Payable: PeopleCube Acquisition Note for $1,70@aSaely, our insurance carrier agreed to pay u80$i conjunction with tF
settlement. With the insurance proceeds and eftsetting any related litigation costs incurred2®il4, we recorded a net gain of $1,034 ol
settlement in the first quarter of 2014. We paig tiote in full in 2014. Finally, as part of theginal purchase price in the Meeting Ma
acquisition, we issued 255,000 shares of our comstaek subject to a lockup expiring as to 125,08es in June 2013 and 130,000 shar
June 2014. This settlement also removed the lofkugne remaining 130,000 shares.

NOTE 5 - GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Asure accounted for its historical acquisitionsaocordance with ASC 803usiness Combinations. We recorded the amot
exceeding the fair value of net assets acquirdtieatiate of acquisition as goodwill. We recordedngible assets apart from goodwill if
assets had contractual or other legal rights dhef assets could be separated and sold, transféicedsed, rented or exchanged. Assire
goodwill relates to the acquisitions of ADI and lag in 2011, the acquisition of PeopleCube in 2ah@ the acquisitions of FotoPunch
Roomtag in 2014.

In accordance with ASC 35Mhtangibles-Goodwill and Other, we review and evaluate our lofiged assets, including intangible as:
with finite lives, for impairment whenever eventsahanges in circumstances indicate that we mayeuwaver their net book value. We -
goodwill for impairment on an annual basis in tloeirth fiscal quarter of each year, and between antests, if indicators of potent
impairment exist, using a fair-vallmsed approach. There has been no impairment awglbdor the periods presented. We amor
intangible assets not considered to have an initeefiiseful life using the straighine method over their useful lives. We currentiyatize ou
acquired intangible assets with definite lives operiods ranging from one to nine years. Each tempperiod, we evaluate the estime
remaining useful life of intangible assets and sssghether events or changes in circumstances ntareevision to the remaining perioc
amortization or indicate that impairment exists. lée not identified any impairments of finiteed intangible assets during any of the per
presented.

In the third quarter of 2013, we reached an agreg¢nuesettle our purchase price pokising adjustment dispute with the seller
PeopleCube. The parties agreed to a post-closipugtatent due to us of $496, with accrued interésk4al, totaling $540. The postesing
adjustment of $496 was deducted from our goodwilébce at September 30, 2013.

The following table summarizes the annual changesiir goodwill:

Balance at December 31, 20 $ 15,52¢
Adjustments to goodwill (520)
Balance at December 31, 20 $ 15,00¢
Goodwill recognized upon acquisition of FotoPui 1,38¢
Goodwill recognized upon acquisition of Room 1,112
Foreign exchange adjustment to goodwill )
Balance at December 31, 2014 $ 17,50(
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The gross carrying amount and accumulated amadizaf our intangible assets as of December 314201 2013 are as follows:

December 31, 201.

Weighted
Average
Amortization
Period (in Accumulated
Intangible Asset Years) Gross Amortization Net
Developed Technolog 7.6 $ 4,02 $ 1,789 $ 2,23
Customer Relationshif 7.2 12,81 (7,234 5,57
Reseller Relationshir 7 853 (396 457
Trade Name 5 694 (662) 32
Covenant not-to-compete 2 22¢ (210 19
7.3 $ 18,607 $ (10,28%) $ 8,32
December 31, 2013
Weighted
Average
Amortization
Period (in Accumulated
Intangible Asset Years) Gross Amortization Net
Developed Technolog 8.3 $ 3,407 $ (1,429 $ 1,98:
Customer Relationshif 7 12,48: (5,370 7,111
Reseller Relationshi 7 853 (279 57¢
Trade Name - 65¢ (659) -
Covenant not-to-compete 2 20E (199 6
7.2 $ 17,60f $ (7,926) $ 9,67¢

We record amortization expense using the strdight-method over the estimated useful lives of itm@angible assets, as no
above. Amortization expenses were $1,999 and $Zdr&014 and 2013, respectively, included in @pirg Expenses. Amortization exper
recorded in Cost of Sales were $360 and $317 fibd 2;d 2013, respectively.

In August 2013, we entered into a purchase agreetoesell certain customer relationships, develofthnology and trade nan
related to certain intangible assets acquiredenptirchase of PeopleCube. The selling price faelessets was $140 with a gain recogniz
$72.

The following table summarizes the future estirdatmortization expense relating to our intangilsigess as of December 31, 2014:

Calendar Years

2015 $ 2,29
2016 1,75¢
2017 1,73¢
2018 1,38¢
Thereafter 1,14¢

$ 8,32
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NOTE 6 — NOTES PAYABLE

The following table summarizes our outstanding debof the dates indicated:

Balance as o Balance as o
Stated Interest December 31, December 31,

Notes Payable Maturity Rate 2014 2013
Subordinated Convertible Notes Paye— 9% Notes 9/30/2014 9.0(% $ - $ 23¢
Subordinated Notes Payable: PeopleCube Acquiditmte 10/31/2014 10.0% - 2,22
Subordinated Notes Payable: Roomtag Acquisitiorel 10/31/201¢ 0.3¢% 694 -
Senior Note Payabl 7/01/201€ 11.5% - 14,54
Term Loan - Wells Fargo 3/31/2019 5.0% 14,43 -
Total Notes Payable $ 15,13 % 17,00
Shor-term notes payab $ 750 $ 4,30
Long-term notes payabl $ 1438 $ 12,69

The following table summarizes the future principayments related to our outstanding debt:

Year Ended Gross Amount
December 31, 201 $ 75C
December 31, 201 1,78t
December 31, 201 1,40¢
December 31, 201 1,50(
December 31, 2019 9,75(
Gross Notes Payabli $ 15,19
Less: Unamortized Original Issue Discoun $ 6
Total Notes Payable $ 15,13

Subordinated Convertible Notes Payable - 9% Notes

In September 2011, we sold $1,500 of our 9% subatdd convertible notes (“9% Notest) a private placement to accred
investors to finance the ADI acquisition. The 9%té&topay interest on each of March 31, June 30,e8dmr 30 and December 31, begin
on December 31, 2011, at a rate of 9% per yeamzaitdred on September 30, 2014. The 9% Notes aweeskby all of our assets, but
subordinated to our obligations under the Term Ldisnussed below.

In March 2012, we amended the terms of the 9% Ntesliminate the embedded derivative featuresltiaguin a settlement
extinguishment of the derivative liability. Unddretterms of the amendment, each holder of 9% Neasspermitted to convert the outstanc
principal balance due there under into shares bEommon stock at the conversion price originadlyferth in the 9% Notes ($5.00 per shar
common stock) on or before March 15, 2012. Hdd#rapproximately $1,400 of the total $1,500 ahgipal amount of 9% Notes conver
their 9% Notes to common stock. The 9% Notes mdt@eptember 30, 2014. At December 31, 2014 andrbleee31, 2013, we had $0 ¢
$238 outstanding, respectively, under the 9% Notes.

Subordinated Notes Payable: PeopleCube Acquisition Note

In July 2012, we issued a $3,000 Note to the selléne PeopleCube stock acquisition. The note dueessOctober 31, 2014, subjec
offset of any amounts owed by the seller to us utitke indemnification provisions of the stock puash agreement. We recorded the nc
fair value using a discount rate of 10%, which hegliin an original issue discount of $622, whiclil wccrete up the note to its aggreg
principal amount over the course of the life of lib@n using the effective interest method.

In the third quarter of 2013, we reached an agreg¢nuesettle our postlosing working capital adjustment dispute with ple€ubs
Holding B.V. and Meeting Maker Holding B.V., thellses of the capital stock of Meeting MakelUnited States, Inc. (dba PeopleCube).
parties agreed to a podbsing adjustment due to us of $496, with accrirerest of $44, totaling $540. The parties agreededuce th
original $3,000 deferred purchase payment by thst-gosing adjustment amount of $540. This also hadetfiect of reducing our note b
like amount. The remaining deferred purchase pbiakance under the Subordinated Notes Payable: &@opké Acquisition Note beca
$2,460.
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In February 2014, we reached an agreement to sdtttéaims and dismiss all pending litigation wiBteopleCube Holding B.V. a
Meeting Maker Holding B.V., the sellers of the d¢apstock of Meeting Maker — United States, Indg&PeopleCube). Under the settlen
agreement, the parties agreed to dismiss thetliigand we settled the remaining balance due bgfuk2,460 on the Subordinated Nc
Payable: PeopleCube Acquisition Note for $1,700pastely, our insurance carrielgreed to pay us $500 in conjunction with
settlement. With the insurance proceeds and eftsetting any related litigation costs incurred2®il4, we recorded a net gain of $1,034 ol
settlement in the first quarter of 2014. We péaid note in full in the first quarter of 2014. Hiyaas part of the original purchase price in
Meeting Maker acquisition, we issued 255,000 shafesir common stock subject to a lockup expirisg@ 125,000 shares in June 2013
130,000 shares in June 2014. This settlementatsoved the lockup for the remaining 130,000 shares

Subordinated Notes Payable: Roomtag Acquisition Note

In August 2014, we acquired substantially all tesedis of Roomtag. The aggregate consideratioméoassets consisted of (i) $93.
cash, and (i) an unsecured subordinated promissotg (“Note”)for $754. We funded the $933 cash payment with ggds from our crec
agreement with Wells Fargo. The Note bears inteaean annual rate of 0.36% aisdpayable on October 31, 2016. We recorded the Id
fair value using a discount rate of 5%, which re=illin an original issue discount of $73, whichlwaitcrete up the note to its aggre:
principal amount over the course of the life of kb&n using the effective interest method. ThiseNstsubordinated to our obligations unde!
Term Loan discussed below.

Senior Note Payable

In July 2012, we and our whollywned subsidiaries entered into a loan agreemeht Béerpath Funding, LP, a Delaware lim
partnership, as lender, administrative agent afldtecal agent (“Deerpath”)Jnder the loan agreement, we borrowed $14,500 finéince th
cash purchase consideration for the acquisitioReafpleCube, (ii) pay outstanding indebtedness uthdet5% Notes (including partial inter
and subordination consent payments of $134 to Mep8l, our Chief Executive Officer, and $81 to Ricle Fund, which is controlled
David Sandberg, our Chairman) and our bank linereflit, and (iii) pay transaction costs and expsm$ehe term loan and the acquisitiol
PeopleCube.

We made quarterly principal payments of $362 eattthe senior note payable beginning October 1, 20M& paid the requirt
$2,000 principal payment in May 2013. The balanicthis note of $14,085 was refinanced under a resilify with Wells Fargo Bank, N.A.
March 2014, as discussed below. We were in comgiavith all covenant requirements as of Decembe813, and through the payoff di
We recorded a loss on debt refinancing of $1,40thénfirst quarter of 2014, of which $704 is a pegament premium and $698 is noasl
deferred financing costs.

Term Loan - Wells Fargo

In March 2014, we entered into a Credit Agreemeith Wells Fargo Bank, N.A., as administrative agemd the lenders that are pi
thereto. We used the proceeds of the term loamamdée the repayment of all amounts outstandinguadr loan agreement with Deerpath
the payment of certain fees, cost and expensdeddiathe Credit Agreement.

The Credit Agreement provides for a term loan & @&mount of $15,000. The term loan will mature iarth 2019. The outstandi
principal amount of the term loan is payable fokow

$188 on June 30, 2014 and the last day of eacl figarter thereafter up to March 31, 2(;

$281 on June 30, 2016 and the last day of eachl figarter thereafter up to March 31, 2017;

$375 on June 30, 2017 and the last day of eachl fig@rter thereafter, with a final payment of temaining balance due
March 31, 201¢

The first three scheduled principal payments ofgéd@é8ch were made timely in June, September andniizre2014.

The Credit Agreement also provides for a revolvingn commitment in the aggregate amount of up t®@®B The outstandil
principal amount of the revolving loan is due arayable in March 2019. Additionally, the Credit Agreent provides for a $10,C
uncommitted incremental term loan facility to suggaermitted acquisitions. Under the revolver, $8@svoutstanding and $3,000 was avail
for borrowing at December 31, 2014. In July 2014, errowed $1,500 under the revolver, which wasl tedund a portion of the acquisiti
cost of all of the issued and outstanding sharesoofmon stock of FotoPunch, Inc. In August 2014,beeowed $1,000 under the revol
which was used to fund a portion of the acquisitiost of substantially all the assets of Roomtdd;.LWe repaid the balance on the revol
leaving a balance of $0 at December 31, 2014.
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The term loan and revolving loan will bear interedgtour option, at (i) the greater of 1% or LIBQ#RJs an applicablenargin or (ii)
base rate (as defined in the Credit Agreement) piuapplicable margin. We have elected to use tBOR rate plus the applicable mar
which was 5% for the first nine months ended Decem®i, 2014. Interest is payable quarterly andntlhegin varies based upon our level
ratio. See table below of applicable margin rates.

Base Rate LIBOR Rate
Total Leverage Ratio Margin Margin
>2.75:1.C 3.0(% 4.0(%
< 2.75:1.0 but > 2.25: 2.5(% 3.5(%
<2251 2.0(% 3.0(%

We may voluntarily prepay the principal amount tansling under the revolving loan at any time withqenalty o
premium. However, we must pay a premium if we makeluntary prepayment of outstanding principadlemthe term loan during the fi
two years following the closing date or if we aeguired to prepay outstanding principal under thed® Agreement with proceeds resul
from certain asset sales or debt incurrence. Thenjpm is 1% or 0.5% of the principal amount beingpaid depending on whether
prepayment occurs on or before the first annivgradrthe closing date or subsequent to the firstiarsary date through the sec
anniversary of the closing date. In addition, we grquired to repay outstanding principal on anuahbasis with 50% of excess cash fl
certain over advances, asset sale proceeds, defgquls, and proceeds from judgments and settlenfentdf December 31, 2014, none of tt
payments were due.

Under the Credit Agreement, we are required to taaina fixed charge coverage ratio of not less th&nto 1.0 beginning with tl
quarter ending June 30, 2014 and each calendatequlaereafter, and a leverage ratio of not gretit@n 3.5 to 1.0 beginning with the qua
ending June 30, 2014 with the levels stepping dtveneafter. The Credit Agreement was amended inuAug014. The Amendment revit
the leverage ratio beginning with the quarter egdBeptember 30, 2014 to a leverage ratio of nattgrehan 3.6 to 1.0 with the levels step
down thereafter. The Credit Agreement was amendddarch 2015 to authorize us to optionally prepgyhject to specified conditions,
Subordinated Note Payable to Roomtag and to rekiesséeverage ratio beginning with the quarter endedch 31, 2015 to a leverage ratic
not greater than 3.5 to 1.0 with the levels stegpiown thereafter.

The Credit Agreement contains customary affirmatwel negative covenants, including, among othérstaltions with respect
debt, liens, fundamental changes, sale of assefsapment of debt, investments, dividends, ands&retions with affiliates.

We were in compliance with the covenant requireihes of December 31, 2014 and expect to be in kange or be able to obt:
compliance through debt repayments with the avigilahsh on hand or as expected to be generatedojpenations over the subsequent tw
month period.

The Credit Agreement contains customary eventsefdidt, including, among others, payment defaudtsenant defaults, judgme
defaults, bankruptcy and insolvency events, cre$aults to certain indebtedness, incorrect reptagens or warranties, and change of cor
In some cases, the defaults are subject to cusyomedice and grace period provisions.

In March 2014 and in connection with the Credit égment, we and our whollywned active subsidiaries entered into a Guaramd

Security Agreement with Wells Fargo Bank. Under @waranty and Security Agreement, we and each oWbolly-owned active subsidiari
have guaranteed all obligations under the Credie@ment and granted a security interest in subatigrall of our and our subsidiaries’ assets.
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NOTE 7 - PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
Property and equipment and related depreciableiubegs as of December 31, 2014 and 2013 are csatpof the following:

December 31

2014 2013

Software: -5 years $ 4,70¢ $ 4,121
Furniture and equipment-5 years 4,53( 4,371
Internal support equipment-4 years 69¢€ 69€
Vehicle: 7 year: 42 42
Capital leases: lease term or life of the a 17¢ 17¢
Leasehold improvements: lease term or life of therovement 2,162 2,15¢
12,31¢ 11,56¢

Less accumulated depreciation (10,779 (10,337
$ 153 $ 1,23:

We record the amortization of our capital leaseslggreciation expense on our Consolidated Stater@n€Comprehensive Lo
Depreciation and amortization expenses relatimyeperty and equipment were approximately $462%#® for 2014 and 2013, respectively.

NOTE 8 - STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

In May 2013, we sold approximately 662,000 shafesbmmon stock to various investors, including agrtdirectors of the Compa
and other entities affiliated with the directorsaapurchase price of $5.31 per share, for proceegisof fees and expenses, of approximi
$3,433. We sold the shares pursuant to a regmtratatement on Form $and a related prospectus supplement. We use@i®afahe funds 1
make a required principal payment under our loaremgent with Deerpath Funding. We used the balafithe net proceeds for gene
corporate purposes and repayment of additionatandsg debt.

SHARE REPURCHASE PROGRAM

Pursuant to Asure’stock repurchase plan, we may repurchase updt@@® shares of our common stock. We have repsecha tot:
of 384,000 shares for approximately $5.0 millioreothe life of the plan. Management will periodligassess repurchasing additional shi
depending on our cash position, market conditidim@ancial covenants and other factors. While thegpam remains in place, we did
repurchase any shares during 2014 or 2013.

STOCK AND STOCK OPTION PLANS

Asure has one active equity plan, the 2009 Equéy Rhe “2009 Plan”). The 2009 Plan provides far tssuance of nogualified an
incentive stock options to our employees and caastd. We generally grant stock options with exargirices greater than or equal to the
market value at the time of grant. The optionsegalty vest over three to four years and are egebie for a period of five to ten ye
beginning with date of grant. Our shareholderpraped an amendment to the 2009 Plan in June 20idctease the number of she
reserved under the plan from 1,200,000 to 1,400,000have a total of 735,000 options granted anstaoding pursuant to the 2009 Plan ¢
December 31, 2014.

We use the Blackscholes option valuation model to value employeekstwards. We estimate stock price volatility lohepon ou
historical volatility. Estimated option life andrfeiture rate assumptions are derived from hisédrifata. For stockased compensation awe
with graded vesting, we recognize compensationesg@esing the straight-line amortization method.

Total compensation expense recognized in the Ciolatet! Statements of Comprehensive Loss for stasled) awards was $226
$160 for 2014 and 2013, respectively.
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The following table summarizes the assumptions teekkvelop their fair value for 2014 and 2013:

Year Ended December 31

2014 2013
Risk-free interest rat 1.71% 1.71%
Expected volatility 0.6: 0.6:
Expected life in year 3.63 4.5C

Dividend yield - -

As of December 31, 2014, Asure had reserved slodu@smmon stock for future issuance as follows:

Options outstandin 735,00(
Options available for future grant 599,00(
Shares reserved 1,334,00!

The following table summarizes activity under dfis during 2014 and 2013.

For 2014 For 2013

Weighted Weighted

Average Average

Exercise Exercise

Shares Price Shares Price

Outstanding at the beginning of the y 795,000 $ 3.5¢ 679,000 $ 3.1¢
Grantec 190,00t 5.7¢ 216,00( 5.6¢€
Exercisec (12,000 2.0t (17,000 2.0Z
Canceled (238,000 5.64 (83,000 5.8:2
Outstanding at the end of the year 735,000 g 3.51 795,000 g 3.5¢
Options exercisable at the end of the year 492,000 ¢ 2.6¢ 369,000 ¢ 2.5¢
Weighted average fair value of options grantedripthe yea 5.7¢ 5.6¢

The following table summarizes the outstanding exetcisable options and their exercise prices &eotmber 31, 2014:

OPTIONS OUTSTANDING OPTIONS EXERCISABLE
NUMBER WEIGHTED - NUMBER
OUTSTANDING AVERAGE EXERCISABLE
AT REMAINING WEIGHTED - AND VESTED AT WEIGHTED -
RANGE OF DECEMBER 31, CONTRACTUAL AVERAGE DECEMBER 31, AVERAGE
EXERCISE PRICES 2014 LIFE (YEARS) EXERCISE PRICE 2014 EXERCISE PRICE
$ 1.50--2.11 14,00( 29C $ 1.92 14,00C $ 1.92
2.33-- 2.3¢ 467,00( 3.2¢€ 2.3¢ 425,00( 2.3
2.57--6.42 254,00( 4.1¢ 5.7¢ 53,00( 5.7¢
$ 1.50-- 6.4 735,00( 35¢ $ 3.51 492,000 $ 2.6¢

The aggregate intrinsic value of options outstagi@ind options exercisable is $1,561 and $1,44Bentiwely, at December 31, 2014.
NOTE 9 - DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLAN

We sponsor a defined contribution 401(k) plan feavailable to substantially all employees. Ouaibof Directors may amend
terminate the plan at any time. We provided magloontributions to the plan of $195 and $147 in2atd 2013, respectively.
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NOTE 10 - REVENUE CONCENTRATION
During 2014 and 2013, there were no customers wioidually represented 10% or more of consolidatgenue.
NOTE 11 - NET LOSS PER SHARE

The following table sets forth the computation asiz and diluted net loss per common share for 20t42013.

We have excluded stock options to acquire 735,0@D785,000 shares for 2014 and 2013, respectifrelyy the computation of tl
dilutive stock options because the effect of ineglgdhe stock options would have been anti-dilutive

Year Year
Ended Ended
December 31, December 31,
2014 2013
Net Loss (262) (1,662)
Weightec-average shares of common stock outstan 6,002,00! 5,661,001
Basic and diluted net loss per share (0.04) (0.29)

NOTE 12 - INCOME TAXES

The components of pre-tax loss for the years efgEmtmber 31, 2014 and 2013 are as follows:

2014 2013
Domestic $ 99 $ (1,660)
Foreign (46) 11E
Total $ (145) (1,54%)

The components of the provision for income tax#sbatable to continuing operations for the yeamsled December 31, 2014
2013 are as follows:

2014 2013

Current:
Federa $ - 3 8
State 2 2
Foreign (26) 2C
Total current (29 26
Deferred:
Federa 13C 6C
State 11 7
Foreign - 24
Total deferred 141 91

$ 117 117
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Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effedteemporary differences between the carrying anmwaftassets and liabilities -
financial reporting purposes and the amounts usedricome tax purposes. Significant componentshef Companys deferred taxes
December 31, 2014 and 2013 are as follows:

2014 2013
DEFERRED TAX ASSETS:
Current deferred tax asst
Deferred revenu $ 745 $ 92C
Accrued expense 107 104
Other 41 36
89z 1,06(
Valuation allowance (847) (1,007)
Net current deferred tax assets 4€ 59
Noncurrent deferred tax ass
Net operating losse 40,19¢ 40,10¢
Research and development credit carryforw. 4,48¢ 4,39¢
Minimum tax credit carryforward 161 161
Fixed asset - -
Share based compensat 11 .
Other 4 2
44,85¢ 44,67(
Valuation allowance (43,96() (43,247)
Net noncurrent deferred tax assets 89¢ 1,427
Noncurrent deferred tax liabilitie
Acquired intangible: (587) (1,349
Fixed asset (361) (316
Goodwill (45) (13)
Total noncurrent deferred tax liabilities (1,400 (1,807)
Net current deferred tax asset (liability) 46 58
Net noncurrent deferred tax liability $ (502) $ (374

At December 31, 2014, we had federal net operdtiag carryforwards of approximately $116,620, reseand development cre
carryforwards of approximately $4,981 and alteretninimum tax credit carryforwards of approximgtéll61. The net operating loss .
research and development credit carryforwards exfire in varying amounts from 2018 through 2034at utilized. Minimum tax crec
carryforwards carry forward indefinitely.

As a result of various acquisitions by the Compamngrior years, we may be subject to a substaatialial limitation in the utilizatic
of the net operating losses and credit carryforaatde to the “change in ownershipfovisions of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986
annual limitation may result in the expiration @t perating losses before utilization.

Due to the uncertainty surrounding the timing ddli@ng the benefits of its favorable tax attribatia future tax returns, we he
placed a valuation allowance against our net defetax assets, exclusive of goodwill. During 20th& valuation allowance increased
approximately $563 due primarily to operationsuding expiration of tax carryforwards. Approxirebt $8,251 of the valuation allowar
relates to tax benefits for stock option deductimduded in our net operating loss carryforwardahhwe will allocate, if and when realiz
directly to contributed capital to the extent tleméfits exceed amounts attributable to book dedesoenpensation expense.

We consider undistributed earnings of our foreighsidiaries as permanently reinvested and, acaglsdime have made no provisi
for U.S. federal or state income taxes thereon.
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Our provision for income taxes attributable to ¢omihg operations differs from the expected taxemge (benefit) amount compu
by applying the statutory federal income tax rdt84%b to income before income taxes as a resutiefollowing:

For 2014 For 2013

Computed at statutory ra $ 49 $ (525)
State taxes, net of federal ben 6€ 7C
Permanent items and ot (80) 377
Credit carryforward: (90 (60)
Foreign income taxed at different ra (12) 58
Tax carryforwards not benefitted 281 197

$ 117 $ 117

The total amount of unrecognized tax benefits ataatiary 1, 2014 was approximately $1,252. Then@kation of our unrecognizt
tax benefits at the beginning and end of the ygasifollows:

Balance at January 1, 20 $ 1,252
Additions based on tax positions related to theeniryeal 34
Additions for tax positions of prior years 2
Balance at December 31, 2014 $ 1,28¢

As of December 31, 2014, we had $1,288 of unre@eghtax benefits, which would affect the effectta® rate if recognized. T
Company'’s assessment of its unrecognized tax lisnefubject to change as a function of the Coryipdmancial statement audit.

Our practice is to recognize interest and/or p&slelated to income tax matters in income taeagp. During 2014, we recogni.
$11 of interest and penalties in our income taxeesp.

Asure files tax returns in the U.S. federal jurgsidin and in several state and foreign jurisdictioWe are no longer subject to L
federal income tax examinations for years endirfgreeDecember 31, 2011 and are no longer subjestate and local or foreign income

examinations by tax authorities for years endinfptegeDecember 31, 2010. Asure is not currentlyenraldit for federal, state or any fore
jurisdictions.

NOTE 13 - LEASE COMMITMENTS

Asure’s future minimum lease payments under altajreg and capital leases as of December 31, 2 dsafollows:

OPERATING CAPITAL
LEASE LEASE
CALENDAR YEAR ENDING: OBLIGATIONS OBLIGATIONS

2015 474 168
2016 76 17¢
2017 21 96
2018 21 --
2019 3 --
Thereafter -- --
TOTAL $ 59t $ 42¢
Less current portion of obligations (163)
Long-term portion of obligations $ 26€

Total rent expense under all operating leases@@d2nd 2013 were $624 and $671, respectively2Bb4 and 2013, approximat
47.2% and 45.1%, respectively, of our total oparptease obligations relates to our corporate effécility at Wild Basin in Austin, Texas.
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NOTE 14 — SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Credit Agreement with Wells Fargo was amendedarch 2015 to authorize us to optionally prepswybject to specifie
conditions, the Subordinated Note Payable to Rogratal to revise the leverage ratio beginning whiih quarter ended March 31, 2015
leverage ratio of not greater than 3.5 to 1.0 withlevels stepping down thereafter.
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Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 16{dhe Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registhas duly caused this report tc
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, theredatyp authorized.

ASURE SOFTWARE, INC.

March 27, 2015 By /s/ PATRICK GOEPEI

Patrick Goepe
Chief Executive Office

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgl Act of 1934, this report has been signed byfdHowing persons on behalf of 1
Registrant and in the capacities and on the ddiedted.

Signature Title Date
/s/ PATRICK GOEPE Chief Executive Officer March 27, 2015
Patrick Goepe (Principal Executive Officer
and Directol
/sl BRAD WOLFE Chief Financial Officer March 27, 2015
Brad Wolfe (Principal Financial and Accounting Office
/s/ DAVID SANDBERC Chairman of the Board March 27, 2015

David Sandber

Is/ ADRIAN PERTIERR/ Director March 27, 2015
Adrian Pertierre

/sl J. RANDALL WATERFIELL Director March 27, 2015
J. Randall Waterfield

Is/ MATTHEW BEHREN?1 Director March 27, 2015
Matthew Behren
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INDE X TO EXHIBITS

EXHIBIT DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION

NUMBER

2.1 Asset Purchase Agreement dated October 1, 30ahd among Asure Software, Inc., ADI SoftwareCland ADI Time,
LLC (1)

2.2 Asset Purchase Agreement dated December 14,i80and among Asure Software, Inc., ADI LegianiC and WG Ross
Corp. (2)

2.3 Stock Purchase Agreement dated July 1, 20ti&ke Meeting maker Holding B.V. and PeopleCubediihgl B.V. and
Asure Software, Inc. (¢

2.4 (i;)de Purchase and Perpetual License Agreatated October 9, 2012 between Asure Software gim¢.FotoPunch, Inc.

3.1 Restated Certificate of Incorporation |

3.2 Certificate of Amendment to the Restated Certifaait Incorporation (6

3.3 (Second) Certificate of Amendment to the Restatedificate of Incorporation (7

3.4 Amended and Restated Bylaws

4.1 Specimen Certificate for the Common Stock

4.2 Amended and Restated Rights Agreement, datefl@ctober 28, 2009 between Asure Software,dnd. American Stock
Transfer & Trust Company (1!

4.3 Amended and Restated Certificate of DesignatioBesfes A Junior Participating Preferred Stock |

4.4 Form of Rights Certificate (1(

4.5 Form of 9% Subordinated Convertible Promissory N¢itg

4.6 Form of 15% Subordinated Promissory Note

4.7 Form of Securities Purchase Agreement for 9% Subateld Convertible Promissory Note |

4.8 Form of Securities Purchase Agreement for 15% Slibated Promissory Note (

4.9 Registration Rights Agreement (

4.10 Amended and Restated Registration Rights Agreedstetd March 10, 2012 (1

411 Amendment Agreement with respect to the AmendedRestated 9% Convertible Promissory Notes

4.12 Promissory Note dated October 2011 issued in cdimmewith acquisition of certain assets from ADhig, LLC (2)

4.13 Letter Agreement from Patrick Goepel relating tddture of option rights (2

414 Stock Option Agreement for Patrick Goepel

4.15 Stock Option Agreement for Steve Rodriguez

4.16 Stock Option Agreement for Mike Kinney (

10.1 Amended Restricted Stock Plan, effective May 23&2(1.2)

10.2 2009 Equity Plan, amended as of June 26, 2012
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10.3

10.4

10.5

10.6

10.8

10.9

10.10

10.11

10.12

10.13

10.14

10.15

10.16

10.17

10.18

10.19

14

21

23.1

311

31.2

32.1

32.2

101

Amendment No. 3 to 2009 Equity Plan (:

Form of Option Agreement under the 2009 Equity RIB)

Stock Purchase Agreement dated September 25,2@0%uatrick Goepel (14

Amended and Restated Employment Agreement datgd®,)@011 with Patrick Goepel (
Employment Letter with Mike Kinney, dated as of Aisg 15, 2011 (2

Employment Letter with Steve Rodriguez, dated a&wgfust 15, 2011 (2

Credit Agreement between Asure Software, Inc. &dargan Chase Bank, N.A. (

Fourth Amendment to Lease Agreement with WB Onev8doLTD (15)

Lease Agreement to Premises located at 200 CrasBioglevard, Warwick, Rhode Island
Sixth Amendment to Lease Agreement with Wild Bdssnll Investors, LP (2]

First Amendment to Loan Agreement effectisef December 31, 2012 by and among Asure SoftimareADI Software,
LLC, Asure Legiant, LLC Meeting Mak¢ United States, Inc. and Deerpath Funding, LP

Form of Common Stock Purchase Agreement dated &pf30, 2013 (17

Second Amendment to Loan Agreement effeetivef March 31, 2013 by and among Asure Softwace ADI Software,
LLC, Asure Legiant, LLC Meeting Make¢ United States, Inc. and Deerpath Funding, LP

Third Amendment to Loan Agreement effectigenf September 30, 2013 by and among Asure Saftimar, ADI
Software, LLC, Asure Legiant, LLC Meeting Mak- United States, Inc. and Deerpath Funding, LP

Credit Agreement by and among Wells FargakBblational Association, as Administrative Agethe Lenders that are
parties Hereto as the Lenders, and Asure Softwaee,as Borrower, Dated as of March 20, 2014

Guaranty and Security Agreement betweeneASoftware, Inc. and Wells Fargo Bank, Nationalossastion, dated March
20, 2014 (20

Code of Business Conduct and Ethics

Subsidiaries of the Compan

Consent of Ernst & Young LLP

Certification pursuant to Section 302 of the Sads-Oxley Act of 2002*
Certification pursuant to Section 302 of the Sads-Oxley Act of 2002*

Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 13%0adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbarkes+@ct of 2002
(furnished, not filed)

Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 13%0adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbarks+@ct of 2002
(furnished, not filed)’

The following materials from Asure Softwanes.Is Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year enBedember 31, 2014,
formatted in XBRL (Extensible Business Reportingnggaage): (1) the Consolidated Balance Sheetshé2Lonsolidated

Statements of Comprehensive Loss, (3) the Condetidatatements of Cash Flows, and (4) Notes to @idiased Financie
Statements
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1)

(@)

(3)
(4)
(5)

(6)
(7)
(8)
(9)

(10)
(11)

(12)

(13)
(14)

(15)

(16)

(17)
(18)
(19)
(20)

Incorporated by reference to the Companylar@erly Report on Form 10-Q for the three montideel September 30, 2011 filed with
the SEC on November 14, 20:

Incorporated by reference to the Company’suahiReport on Form 18-for the year ended December 31, 2011 filed with $EC or
March 30, 2012

Incorporated by reference to the Com(’'s Current Report on Forn-K filed with the SEC on July 6, 201
Incorporated by reference to the Com’s Current Report on Forn-K filed with the SEC on October 15, 20:

Incorporated by reference to the Companyiaierly Report on Form 1Q-for the three months ended October 31, 2004 filitll the
SEC on December 15, 20(

Incorporated by reference to the Com’'s Current Report on Forn-K filed with the SEC on December 29, 20
Incorporated by reference to Appendix C to the Camny' s 2012 Proxy Statement filed with the SEC on MayZZR 2.
Incorporated by reference to the Comg's Current Report on Forn-K filed with the SEC on September 27, 20

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 te @ompany’s Registration Statement on Form S-d fitéh the SEC on December 13,
2012.

Incorporated by reference to the Com(’s Current Report on Forn-K filed with the SEC on October 28, 20(
Incorporated by reference to the Com(’'s Current Report on Forn-K filed with the SEC on March 12, 201

Incorporated by reference to the Compa@usarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the three momthded April 30, 2006 filed with the
SEC on June 14, 200

Incorporated by reference to the Comg's 2013 Proxy Statement filed with the SEC on ARG 2013.
Incorporated by reference to the Com’s Current Report on Forn-K filed with the SEC on September 28, 20

Incorporated by reference to the Compa@usarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the three momthded March 31, 2010 filed with the
SEC on May 17, 201(

Incorporated by reference to the Company’auah Report on Form 1B-for the year ended December 31, 2012 filed with $EC or
April 1, 2013.

Incorporated by reference to the Comy’'s Current Report on Forn-K filed with the SEC on June 5, 201

Incorporated by reference to the Comg’'s Current Report on Forn-K filed with the SEC on August 7, 20:
Incorporated by reference to the Comg’s Current Report on Forn-K filed with the SEC on October 2, 20
Incorporated by reference to the Com’'s Current Report on Forn-K filed with the SEC on March 25, 20:

*Filed herewith
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LIST OF SUBSIDIARIES

Subsidiary Location
Compression Labs, In Delaware
Forgent Networks Canada, Ir Canade
iSarla Software Solutions Private Limit India
VTEL Australia, PTY LTD Australia
VTEL Germany, Gmb}t Germany

Asure Software UK Ltd

United Kingdom

EXHIBIT 21



EXHIBIT 23.1
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
We consent to the incorporation by reference a fthilowing registration statements, and in theated prospectuses thereto
Asure Software, Inc. (Form S-3 Nos. 333-185488 388-182828 and Form S-8 Nos. 333-77733, 333-44833;48885, 333-28499, 333-

64212, and 333:10239) of our report dated March 27, 2015, witbpeet to the consolidated financial statements siré Software, In
included in this Annual Report (Form 10-K) for thear ended December 31, 2014.

/sl _Ernst & Young LLP

Austin, Texas
March 27, 2015



EXHIBIT 31.1

CERTIFICATION OF PERIODIC REPORT
PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Patrick Goepel, certify that:
1. | have reviewed the Annual Report on Forn-K of the Company for the calendar year ended Deeer®b, 2014 (th*Repor”);

2. Based on my knowledge, the Report does not coatayruntrue statement of a material fact or omatade a material fact necess
to make the statements made, in light of the cistances under which such statements were madmisieading with respect to tl
periods covered by this Repc

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statemenis,adiner financial information included in the Refpdairly present in all materi
respects the financial condition, results of operst and cash flows of the Company as of, and tfar, periods presented in 1
Report;

4. The Company other certifying officer and | are responsible éstablishing and maintaining disclosure contesld procedures (i
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15¢)) and internal control over financial repagtifas defined in Exchange £
Rules 13-15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the Company and we hay

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresused such disclosure controls and procedures tkesigned under
supervision, to ensure that material informatiolatneg to the Company, including its consolidatedbsidiaries, is mac
known to us by others within these entities, pattidy during the period in which the Report isrimeprepared

(b) Designed such internal control over financial réipg;, or caused such internal control over finahe@orting to be designe
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation
financial statements for external purposes in atauce with generally accepted accounting princijy

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the Compsujsclosure controls and procedures and presamtbée Report our conclusio
about the effectiveness of the disclosure con@als procedures, as of the end of the period cougydtie Report based !
such evaluation; an

(d) Disclosed in the Report any change in then@anys internal control over financial reporting thatcomed during th
Companys most recent calendar year ended December 31, @@isas materially affected, or is reasonablglikto
materially affect, the Compa’s internal control over financial reporting; &

5. The Companyg other certifying officer and | have disclosedsdxh on our most recent evaluation of internal abrdver financia
reporting, to the Compa’s auditors and to the Audit Committee of the BazfrBirectors:

(a) All significant deficiencies or material weaknesgethe design or operation of internal control ofieancial reporting whic
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the Comypmability to record, process, summarize and refpmhcial information
and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involvesamagement or other employees who have a significalet in the
Compan’s internal control over financial reportir

/s/ PATRICK GOEPEIL
Patrick Goepe
Chief Executive Office
March 27, 201!




EXHIBIT 31.2

CERTIFICATION OF PERIODIC REPORT
PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Brad Wolfe, certify that:
1. | have reviewed the Annual Report on Forn-K of the Company for the calendar year ended Deeer®b, 2014 (th*Repor”);

2. Based on my knowledge, the Report does not coatayruntrue statement of a material fact or omatade a material fact necess
to make the statements made, in light of the cistances under which such statements were madmisieading with respect to tl
periods covered by this Repc

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statemenis,adiner financial information included in the Refpdairly present in all materi
respects the financial condition, results of operst and cash flows of the Company as of, and tfar, periods presented in 1
Report;

4. The Company other certifying officer and | are responsible éstablishing and maintaining disclosure contesld procedures (i
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15¢)) and internal control over financial repagtifas defined in Exchange £
Rules 13-15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the Company and we hay

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresused such disclosure controls and procedures tkesigned under
supervision, to ensure that material informatiolatneg to the Company, including its consolidatedbsidiaries, is mac
known to us by others within these entities, pattidy during the period in which the Report isrimeprepared

(b) Designed such internal control over financial réipg;, or caused such internal control over finahe@orting to be designe
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation
financial statements for external purposes in atauce with generally accepted accounting princijy

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the Compsujsclosure controls and procedures and presamtbée Report our conclusio
about the effectiveness of the disclosure con@als procedures, as of the end of the period cougydtie Report based !
such evaluation; an

(d) Disclosed in the Report any change in then@anys internal control over financial reporting thatcomed during th
Companys most recent calendar year ended December 31, @@isas materially affected, or is reasonablglikto
materially affect, the Compa’s internal control over financial reporting; &

5. The Companyg other certifying officer and | have disclosedsdxh on our most recent evaluation of internal abrdver financia
reporting, to the Compa’s auditors and to the Audit Committee of the BazfrBirectors:

(a) All significant deficiencies or material weaknesgethe design or operation of internal control ofieancial reporting whic
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the Comypmability to record, process, summarize and refpmhcial information
and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involvesamagement or other employees who have a significalet in the
Compan’s internal control over financial reportir

/s BRAD WOLFE
Brad Wolfe

Chief Financial Office
March 27, 201!




EXHIBIT 32.1

CERTIFICATION OF PERIODIC REPORT
PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Patrick Goepel, do hereby certify, pursuant8dULS.C. Section 1350, as adopted by Section 9€edSarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

1. The Annual Report on Form 10-K of the Compfonthe calendar year ended December 31, 2014'igaport”) fully complies with

the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of theusities Exchange Act of 1934 as amended,

2. The information contained in the Report fairly @ets, in all material respects, the financial ctadiand results of operations of 1
Company.

/s/ PATRICK GOEPEL
Patrick Goepe
Chief Executive Office
March 27, 201!

A signed original of this written statement reqdifey Section 906 has been provided to Asure So#wlaic. and will be retained by Asi
Software, Inc. and furnished to the Securities Brchange Commission or its staff upon request. féregoing certification is being furnish
solely pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350 and isemg filed as part of the Report or as a sepatsiclosure document.



EXHIBIT 32.2

CERTIFICATION OF PERIODIC REPORT
PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Brad Wolfe, do hereby certify, pursuant to 1&l€. Section 1350, as adopted by Section 906 dbénkanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

1. The Annual Report on Form 10-K of the Comptomthe fiscal year ended December 31, 2014 (Repbrt”) fully complies with the

requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the S&earExchange Act of 1934 as amended,

2. The information contained in the Report fairly @ets, in all material respects, the financial ctadiand results of operations of 1
Company.

/s/ BRAD WOLFE
Brad Wolfe

Chief Financial Office
March 27, 201!

A signed original of this written statement reqdifey Section 906 has been provided to Asure So#wlaic. and will be retained by Asi
Software, Inc. and furnished to the Securities Brchange Commission or its staff upon request. féregoing certification is being furnish
solely pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350 and isemg filed as part of the Report or as a sepatsiclosure document.



